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Ibec is Ireland’s largest lobby and business 
representative group. Our purpose is to help 
build a better, sustainable future by influencing, 
supporting and delivering for business success. 
With over 250 employees, Ibec engages with 
key stakeholders in Ireland and internationally 
through our six regional offices and our Brussels 
office, along with an extensive international 
network in the UK and US. Ibec is world-leading 
in business representation.

Ibec positions are shaped by our diverse 
membership, which range from small to large, 
domestic to multinational, and our 39 trade 
associations cover a wide range of industry 
sectors. Ibec members employ over 70% of  
the private sector workforce in Ireland. 

As well as lobbying, Ibec provides a wide range 
of professional services and management 
training to members on all aspects of human 
resource management, occupational health and 
safety, employer relations and employment law.
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As the voice of business in 
Ireland, Ibec provides a range 
of policy and professional 
services to our members.

Our business has five 
components: Lobbying 
and Influence; Trade 
Associations; Employer 
Relations; Membership and 
Commercial Services; and, 
International Business.

With six offices across Ireland 
and one in Brussels, Ibec’s 
voice is delivered at home 
and abroad.
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Our Vision
To be an organisation of substantial 
influence and impact wherever our 
members do business.

Our Mission
We will accelerate our development as a 
professional member services organisation 
by growing our membership and 
commercial services.

Our Purpose
To help build a better, sustainable future by 
influencing, supporting, and delivering for 
business success.

Ibec at a Glance

Employer 
Relations

Lobbying  
and Influence

Membership 
and 
Commercial 
Services

Trade
Associations

International 
Business
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Ibec by Numbers

1 
 Ibec is Ireland’s largest 

and most influential 
lobby organisation. 35,070

The level of attendance across 
Ibec’s 156 Webinars in 2020, 

with a 97% satisfaction rating. 

80,000+
The number of times Ibec 
content was downloaded 

from our website.  

46,500+
Ibec has gained a 

significant following 
across our social media 

channels in 2020. 

7
Ibec has six offices in 

Ireland and one abroad 
– Cork, Donegal, Dublin, 

Galway, Limerick, 
Waterford and Brussels. 

39
Operating as a branded 

house, a wide range of trade 
associations operate under 

the Ibec umbrella. 

174
Media releases issued in 2020 
by our Media Office were key 
to reaching local, national and 

international audiences. 

25
The number of podcast 
episodes released by 

Ibec last year.  

1,357
The number of third-party 
cases managed by Ibec’s

Employer Relations Division. 
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Ibec: The Voice
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Ibec President’s Broadcast 2020: Danny 
McCoy, CEO, Ibec, and An Taoiseach, 
Micheál Martin TD, pictured during 
the virtual event to mark the official 
handover of the Ibec Presidency from 
Pat McCann, CEO, Dalata Hotel Group, 
to Alastair Blair, Country Managing 
Director, Accenture in Ireland.

The next phase of business 
sustainability: This was the theme of 
the opening session of the virtual Ibec 
Business Leaders Conference 2021, 
which was addressed by Alastair 
Blair, Country Managing Director for 
Accenture in Ireland and Ibec President.

Ibec was featured in the July 2021 
“Spotlight on Ireland” digital and print 
edition of The New York Times.
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Ibec: The Voice
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Ibec’s Impact

Our members, comprised of big and small, 
home-grown and multinational businesses 
operating in 39 trade associations, provide 
us with unique insights and a comprehensive 
understanding of how the Irish business 
model and economy works.

Ibec promotes a 
positive business 
environment in Ireland 
by campaigning 
for evidence-
based policies that 
are formulated in 
consultation with 
our members.
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Ibec’s mandate comes from 
our members. A National 
Council with over 100 
business leaders is the final 
decision-making body for the 
organisation, approving Ibec 
policy positions and providing 
a forum where the constituent 
members and groupings can 
engage and exchange views. 

The National Council includes 
Ibec’s President, Deputy 
President, Regional Presidents, 
members nominated by the 
regions, Chairs of sectors and 
policy committees, elected 
and co-opted members 
and the three immediate 
past Presidents.
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It has been a great privilege and honour 
to serve as Ibec President over the last 
year. The experience of representing Irish 
business in the unique circumstances of this 
pandemic has been remarkable and, indeed, 
rewarding given the response of the business 
community in adapting to the challenge.

Confident and 
forward-looking

President’s Statement 
Alastair Blair
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The complexity and range of issues 
tackled and lobbied upon by Ibec this 
year has been challenging. So too 
has ensuring the diversity of business 
needs was heard and understood, 
in particular those who were in crisis 
across the Experience Economy. The 
main priorities of my presidential year 
ranged across sustainability, skills 
and digitalisation and the Experience 
Economy, all under the shadow of 
the Covid pandemic and the reality of 
Brexit implementation. 

The disruption of the crisis has 
created a catalyst to re-invent and 
industry needs to work together to 
help people access the skills and 
knowledge they need. During the 
past year much of the work I led 
was around building and supporting 
Ireland’s greatest asset, our people 
and talent. We need to give people 
the skills to do their jobs brilliantly 
and empower them to determine 
new ways of working in the new 
normal. This can position Ireland at 
the leading edge of those nations 
that are adopting and benefitting 
from the rapidly accelerating 
digitisation of the world economy. 

The transformation and transition 
of our businesses, economies 
and societies over the last year 
was testament to the power of 

digitalisation of every sector and 
facet of our lives, both personal 
and business. The digitalisation 
trend spanned every aspect, from 
transacting in payments and online 
commerce, to data analytics, artificial 
intelligence and robotics usage. 
Cyber security and blockchain 
technology usage was significantly 
advanced by Irish business and by 
Ibec specifically within EU lobbying 
throughout this year.  

Reimagining a better Ireland is 
now core to the purpose of Irish 
business and Ibec continued to 
drive awareness and engagement 
on the sustainability agenda from 
an environmental and societal 
perspective. The Ibec Business 
Leaders Conference focused on 
stakeholders and sustainability, 
bringing together a cast of incredible 
speakers from all over the globe to 
chart a course forward. It is clear that 
Ibec is world class in identifying and 
grasping many of the challenges for 
business in these times by supporting 
the development of new thinking and 
creating new opportunities. 

The launch of Ibec’s ‘More than 
meets the eye’ campaign was an 
important milestone in the year. 
This set out to communicate a 
contemporary definition and narrative 

for Ireland’s Experience Economy, 
with the purpose to educate 
stakeholders of its deep linkages and 
intrinsic value to Ireland’s economy 
and the importance of appropriate 
investment and affording it the 
status it deserves. This campaign 
provides an opportunity to lobby 
on immediate issues for companies 
impacted, but also to reimagine the 
sector for a sustainable future. 

Working with the Board, the 
National Council and the Executive, 
I have engaged across the political 
spectrum in Ireland and connected 
internationally with Ibec’s substantial 
network. I am very grateful to the 
Ibec National Council for giving 
me the opportunity to lead this 
last year, to the Deputy President 
Frank Gleeson for his support, 
and to the Ibec Executive for their 
professionalism and stewardship 
through a remarkable year. I would 
also like to thank the team at 
Accenture Ireland for their ongoing 
support and patience. I am proud 
to have had the opportunity to 
represent Irish business and it 
was an honour to serve as Ibec 
President. 

Reimagining a better Ireland is now core to the 
purpose of Irish business and Ibec continued 
to drive awareness and engagement on the 
sustainability agenda from an environmental 
and societal perspective.
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Chair’s Statement
Eugene McCague

Ibec’s resilience as a business, the agility of 
our people, and the strength of our financial 
footing is a testament to the purpose, values, 
and culture of the business. 

Well positioned to 
scale sustainably  
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The Ibec Board which I have the 
privilege to Chair is firmly committed 
to maintaining the highest standards 
of corporate governance, in line with 
best practice. We have a strong 
Board with the necessary skills 
and experience to discharge its 
responsibility to Ibec’s membership 
and stakeholders. During the year, the 
organisation continued to implement 
our strategy “Building Brighter 
Business”, with a strong emphasis 
on both greater commercialisation 
and internationalisation. Two new 
Executive Director Team (EDT) 
hires were made, with Jackie King 
becoming our Executive Director 
of International Business based in 
Brussels and Paula Cain joining as 
our Commercial Director. With the 
addition of Jackie and Paula the 
proportion of female to male on the 
EDT has increased from 20% to 57% 
in the last 3 years. The Board remains 
confident that the Ibec business 
model will continue to deliver for its 
members and provide opportunity 
for its stakeholders as we face into a 
post-pandemic era with the emphasis 
clearly on environmental and societal 
sustainability.  

This report includes commentary 
on the financial state of the 
Irish Business and Employers 
Confederation and Ibec CLG (the 

two principal legal structures through 
which Ibec operates). The finances 
of Ibec continue to improve, with 
the consolidated accounts showing 
turnover of over €35 million in 2020 
and a post-tax surplus of €3.5 
million. The consolidated balance 
sheet position having returned to a 
positive net asset position last year, 
is now a positive €3.7 million. 

Central to Ibec’s continued success 
is the hard work and commitment of 
our employees. Their creativity and 
resilience in adapting to challenging 
and changing conditions, combined 
with continuity of services to 
members is the main driver for Ibec’s 
success in navigating the pandemic. 
This was externally endorsed with 
the achievement of the Best Public 
Affairs Campaign awarded to Ibec for 
its Reboot and Reimagine Campaign, 
a significant external accolade for 
what has been a stellar performance 
and an exceptionally committed 
workforce. The Board is very proud of 
Ibec’s response to the pandemic. 

So much of what we do in Ibec 
relies on relationships and I would 
like to commend all the Ibec team 
for pivoting in the digital context and 
continuing to strengthen and build 
the Ibec network, both domestically 
and internationally. 

I look forward to progressing the 
current strategy and driving these 
priorities in what is a rapidly changing 
external context. It is an honour to 
serve the organisation at such an 
important juncture in Ireland’s future. 
I would like to thank Board members 
for their continued support and 
commitment, the Ibec Executive led 
by our CEO, Danny McCoy, and the 
wider Ibec membership. In particular, 
I wish to thank Alastair Blair and 
compliment him on his successful 
Presidency and to wish Frank 
Gleeson well for his upcoming year as 
President. I also wish to acknowledge 
the contributions of Board members 
who have stepped down over the last 
year, including Tony Smurfit, Kevin 
Toland, Professor Brian McCraith, 
Larry Murrin, and Oliver Loomes, and 
to welcome Kari Daniels and Imelda 
Hurley to the Board. 

Finally, I thank you the membership 
for your loyal support to Ibec over 
what has been a remarkable and 
difficult year for so many. 

The Board remains confident 
that the Ibec business model 
will continue to deliver for 
its members and provide 
opportunity for its stakeholders 
as we face into a post-pandemic 
era with the emphasis 
clearly on environmental and 
societal sustainability.

3
The proportion of 
female to male  
on the EDT has 
increased from  
20% to 57% in  
the last 3 years.
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CEO’s Statement
Danny McCoy 

The last twelve months will be remembered 
due to the unprecedented challenges that 
the pandemic brought globally. Its effect has 
recalibrated so much of our thinking and will 
undoubtedly accelerate trends, bringing both 
challenges and opportunities for Irish business.  

Delivering a better, 
sustainable future
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It has been a period for Ibec’s over 250 
employees to rise to a challenge which 
I believe they did with tremendous 
energy, agility and positivity supporting 
our members, each other, and our 
communities. I am immensely grateful 
to the Ibec team across our 39 Trade 
Associations, Employer Relations, 
Lobbying and Influence, Membership 
and Commercial Services, Business 
Services, Regional and International 
operations. Innovating and adapting 
our model of collaboration, 
engagement, and lobbying in a virtual 
context has continuously improved. 
I believe we are world class as a 
business representative group and 
have received many testimonials 
internationally to endorse that.

We have also innovated in our 
communications, developing new 
strategies to engage our members and 
stakeholders. One such initiative is the 
launch of a second podcast series “Work 
Talks” targeting an audience interested 
in Human Resources insights. The 
insights we garner from our interactions 
across business and stakeholders 
nationally and internationally provides 
unique and unrivalled value to our 
membership, and we will continue to 
find new ways of communicating this 
insight across multiple channels aligned 
with the changes in how content is 
being consumed.

Ibec’s domestic campaigning in the 
last twelve months was defined by 
Reboot and Reimagine, a blueprint 
which set out short, medium and long-
term policy priorities in the context of 
Covid. This campaign provided the 
foundation for Ibec’s lobbying and 
stakeholder engagement during the 
pandemic and continued to provide 
a prism for our membership to 
sequence with us in business dialogue 
with Government.

The major lobbying efforts through 
the last year were dominated by 
pandemic-related issues, but the 
fallout issues from the Brexit and 
Ireland/Northern Ireland Protocol 
were significant too. Ibec has 
been the lead organisation for 
business in the new social dialogue 
structures with the Government and 
Trade Unions through the Labour 
Employer Economic Forum (LEEF) 
on pressing topics like housing, 
pensions, childcare, safe return 
to work protocols, and collective 
bargaining rights. The challenge of 
the next decade and beyond will 
be the effective response to climate 
change. Ibec worked on the topics 
of sustainability and stakeholder 
capitalism throughout the year, 
pivoted around our successful 
Business Leaders Conference on 
both issues. 

The United Nations Sustainable 
Development Goals (SDGs) and 
Global Compact, along with the EU 
“Fit for 55” ambitions for greenhouse 
gas emissions reductions by 2030 
and 2050, will set the agenda. 
Adapting our business model to take 
account of international corporate 
tax changes, collectivism, Brexit, 
and environmental sustainability will 
be the priority, but have started well 
over the last year. I continue to be 
extremely proud of the Irish business 
community and Ibec members for 
their contribution to our society, 
both domestically and globally. My 
executive colleagues continue to 
be dedicated and inspirational in 
representing our members. My thanks 
to them and their families for going 
above and beyond in the last year 
to deliver professionally in difficult 
circumstances. I would like to thank 
Alastair Blair, our Ibec President, and 
Eugene McCague, our Chair for their 
unstinting support.

I would also like to welcome Paula 
Cain who joins the Ibec Executive 
Director Team to lead on our 
commercial ambitions as set out in 
our Strategy 2020-2025. My final 
thanks are to our members for your 
ongoing support and commitment 
to the purpose of delivering a better, 
sustainable future.

60
All-member updates 
on key Ibec priorities 
and activities issued 
by Danny McCoy, 
CEO, Ibec, to 
members in 2020.

It has been a period for Ibec’s 
over 250 employees to rise 
to a challenge which I believe 
they did with tremendous 
energy, agility and positivity 
supporting our members, each 
other, and our communities.
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Ibec Board 2020/2021

Alastair Blair 
Ibec President and 
Country Managing 
Director
Accenture in Ireland

Dalton Philips 
Chief Executive
daa

Gerry Collins 
Vice President
Johnson & Johnson 
Supply Chain 
Strategy & Services

Oliver Loomes 
CEO (Country 
Director), Diageo 
Ireland - Resigned 
30th  
June 2021

Frank Gleeson 
Deputy Ibec 
President and CEO 
Northern Europe
Aramark Northern 
Europe

Danny McCoy 
CEO
Ibec

Imelda Hurley 
CEO
Coillte

Paraic Curtis 
SVP and GM
TE Medical

Anne Heraty 
CEO
CPL Resources plc

Edel Creely 
MD
Arkphire Services

Kari Daniels 
CEO
Tesco Ireland

Pat McCann 
CEO
Dalata Hotel Group

Anne O’Leary 
CEO
Vodafone Ireland

Eugene McCague 
Chair
Ibec

Kevin Toland 
CEO
Aryzta - Resigned 
26th March 2021 

Siobhán Talbot 
Group Managing 
Director
Glanbia plc

Cathriona 
Hallahan 
MD
Microsoft Ireland

Francesca  
McDonagh 
Group CEO
Bank of Ireland Group 

Liam O’Donoghue 
Deputy CEO, COO
Ibec
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Ibec Executive Director Team

The Executive Director team, led by Ibec CEO 
Danny McCoy, is responsible for implementing 
the strategy set by the Ibec Board.

Danny McCoy
CEO

Jackie King 
Executive Director, International Business

Liam O’Donoghue
Deputy CEO/COO

Sharon Higgins
Director of Membership and Services

Fergal O’Brien
Director of Lobbying and Influence

Maeve McElwee
Director of Employer Relations
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Ibec’s People

Ibec employs over 250 people across our offices 
in Ireland and Brussels. We hire people who are 
passionate about Ibec’s purpose and the role they 
can play in delivering on this. Growth and learning are 
integral to our core values and a wide range of career 
and professional development opportunities are made 
available to our staff throughout their careers.

We recognise that 
our people and 
culture are central 
to our ability to 
deliver successfully. 
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Ibec’s new flagship office at Penrose Dock, 
Cork: Ibec’s new regional headquarters 
will ensure that Ibec remains centrally 
connected to the enterprise and business 
developments of Cork City, County 
and wider region

250+
Ibec staff are 68.5% female and 31.5% male. 
Average service is 9 years.  
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Campaigns

Influencing and reacting to domestic and 
international policy, Ibec campaigns for business 
on positions across society and the economy.

As the voice of 
Irish business, Ibec 
campaigns for change 
that will deliver a 
balanced, growing and 
prosperous society. 
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Campaigns
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Launched in May 2020, this 
campaign to shape a better and 
sustainable future for Ireland in the 
wake of Covid continued to be a 
flagship one for Ibec over the past 
year. This focused on working 
closely with business in order to 
suggest a collective and courageous 
response to the crisis. Ibec was 
delighted to have been recognised 
for this campaign by the Awards 
for Excellence in PR 2021, hosted 
by the Public Relations Consultants 
Association and Public Relations 
Institute of Ireland, with the Best 
Public Affairs Campaign 2021 Award. 

A key addition to this campaign 
in 2021 was around bringing a 
contemporary understanding to 
Ireland’s Experience Economy. The 
Experience Economy encompasses 
hospitality, retail, travel, food, drink, 
tourism, entertainment, technology, 
events and organisations in the arts, 
cultural, sporting and heritage sectors. 
It reaches deep into the supply chain 
supporting business and employment 
encompassing many of hard to reach 
but critical elements of the economy 
and society: young people, small 
medium enterprises, regional and 
rural development, with real, tangible 
benefits for the Shared Island. 

Leading on Reimaging:  
A Business Leaders Series 
The purpose of ‘Leading on 
Reimaging: A Business Leaders 
Series’ was to bring experts, societal 
leaders, and business leaders 
together to share ideas and insights 
about environmental, social, and 
corporate governance, and what role 
business can play in creating a more 
sustainable Ireland for everyone. 
Ibec curated a small, select group of 
c-suite executives  
to foster a deeper level of 
engagement at these discussions. 

Reboot & Reimagine

Ministers, Ministers of State, 
TDs, MEPs, Senators, and senior 
Departmental figures engaged 
as part of Ibec’s Experience 
Economy Campaign. 

250+
Left: Reboot & Reimagine for a Better Ireland: Danny McCoy, CEO, Ibec, and Pat 
McCann, CEO, Dalata Hotel Group and Ibec President, were joined by Leader of 
Sinn Féin Mary Lou McDonald TD for a live broadcast event, as part of this series, 
which focused on enabling a strong recovery for business and tackling major 
societal challenges.

Expert insights: We were delighted to be 
joined for our Leading on Reimagining 
series by: Suzanne Clark, President 
and CEO, U.S. Chamber of Commerce; 
Ronan Dunne, Executive Vice President 
and Group CEO, Verizon Consumer; and, 
Eamon Ryan TD, Minister for Transport 
and Minister for the Environment, Climate 
and Communications.



Ibec Annual Report 2020/2021
26

Campaigns
27

Covid made this flagship Ibec 
campaign, to make Ireland a 
better place to live and work, 
more relevant than ever. It 
remained focused on four key 
policy areas: 

 Increasing the supply of 
affordable housing;

 Delivering the right infrastructure 
on time and within budget;

 Overhauling the regime for 
planning consents and appeals;

 Embedding sustainability in 
business activity.

A particularly important milestone 
for this campaign over the past year 
was our submission on the National 
Development Plan, in which Ibec 
called on Government to deliver an 
ambitious programme of world class 
public services and infrastructure 
development. 

Better Lives, Better Business 

Stakeholders & Sustainability:  
This was the theme of Ibec’s Business 
Leaders Conference 2021. As part 
of this virtual event, Imelda Hurley, 
CEO, Coillte, and Ibec Board Member, 
and Event MC and Broadcaster 
Kieran Cuddihy, were joined for a 
panel discussion on “Rethinking 
Sustainability” by: Éamon Ó Cuív, 
Partner Finance, McCann FitzGerald; 
and, Patrick Burke, Managing Director, 
Irish Life Investment Managers. 
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Covid has also undoubtedly 
accelerated existing trends in 
the labour market, as we all 
adjusted to a transformed way 
of working. These developments 
provide both great opportunities 
and challenges. What will the 
new jobs look like and are our 
workplaces, education and  
social protection systems  
ready for change?

Ibec’s Smarter World, Smarter Work 
campaign examines these issues 
and the effect they are having on the 
labour market and business. It sets 
out a vision for a new era of work 
across four key themes:

 Investment in skills and 
employability;

 Flexibility at all life stages;
 A dynamic labour market;
 Smoother career transitions. 

Smarter World, Smarter Work

Mental health in the workplace: 
Francesca McDonagh, Group CEO, 
Bank of Ireland and Ibec Board Member, 
pictured alongside mental health 
campaigner Alastair Campbell, at an 
Ibec-Bank of Ireland virtual discussion 
on the importance of business leaders 
making mental health in the workplace  
a priority for their organisations.
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Ibec worked intensively 
to support members to 
manage uncertainty and 
disruption resulting from 
Brexit, Covid and other 
international challenges. 

Brexit and Future EU

The Shared Island Economy:  
This was among the topics of 
discussion at Ibec’s virtual event  
with Maroš Šefčovič, Vice President 
of the European Commission, and 
Danny McCoy, CEO, Ibec. 

Since September 2020, Ibec has engaged with 
more than 3,000 individual members, providing 
practical guidance on critical issues for business, 
and collaborated closely with key stakeholders and 
decision makers in Dublin, London, Brussels and 
Washington DC.
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Campaigns
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Main highlights

 September 2020:  
Brexit webinar with Simon 
Coveney TD, Minister for Foreign 
Affairs and Defence;

 January 2021:  
Ibec EU outlook event for 2021 
with Commissioner Mairead 
McGuinness, Barry Andrews 
MEP, Frances Fitzgerald MEP;

 February 2021:  
Ibec gave evidence to the 
Seanad Special Select 
Committee on the Withdrawal  
of the UK from the EU;

 March 2021:  
St. Patrick’s Day Brussels event 
in collaboration with Seán 
Kelly MEP, with: Commissioner 
Mairead McGuinness; Thomas 
Byrne TD, Minister of State 
for European Affairs; Michel 
Barnier, Former Head of the 
Commission’s UK Task Force; 
Naomi Long MLA, Minister 
of Justice, Northern Ireland 
Executive; and, Edel Creely, 
Managing Director of Arkphire 
Services and Ibec Board 
Member;

 June 2021:  
Virtual discussion on EU-UK 
relations Maroš Šefčovič, Vice 
President of the European 
Commission. 

Fergal O’Brien, Director of Lobbying 
and Influence, Ibec.

Ibec, with our permanent office in Brussels, engages with the 
EU institutions and international bodies, such as the OECD, 
to influence and lobby in the interests of Irish business on the 
European and international stage.

Ibec’s position as the country’s largest 
lobby group is reflected in the number  
of lobbying returns made in 2020. 

536
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Campaigns
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A Model of Substance 

The Model of Substance 
campaign tells the story 
of the Irish business 
model, how it has 
developed and what  
it looks like today.  

Ireland’s place in the global economy: 
On 17 June 2021, Danny McCoy, 
CEO, Ibec, was joined by Laurence 
Boone, Chief Economist, OECD, for a 
virtual discussion and engagement with 
members on long-term economic policy 
implications from Covid and looking 
beyond GDP to measure success and 
prosperity in modern economies.  

Insights from across the Atlantic: 
Ibec was delighted to host several 
virtual discussions with influential 
and distinguished U.S. stakeholders, 
including The Honourable Martin J 
Walsh, United States Secretary of 
Labor. 

We use six qualities to characterise 
the substance of the Irish business 
model: evolution, global footprint, full 
business life cycle, world class, global 
hub and clusters.

The campaign is being updated 
to provide thought leadership and 
analysis on how the changing global 
landscape that the Irish business 
model operates in offers a unique 
opportunity for Ireland to migrate from 
a model of substance to a model of 
sustainability. 

Ibec wants to see more sustainable 
economic growth and to use different 
economic indicators that place a clear 
emphasis on Ireland’s Environmental, 
Social, and Governance (ESG) 
credentials.

This year Ibec’s communication 
efforts to international audiences with 
a contemporary narrative of the Irish 
business model continued. 
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Ibec Voices, launched in May 2020, 
is a podcast series about the people 
and priorities behind Irish business 
and the global climate that impacts it. 
It provides behind-the-scenes access 
to what’s top of mind for Ireland’s 
business leaders, thought leaders, 
and the people working hard to reboot 
and reimagine a better Ireland.
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Ibec’s 39 Trade Associations 
and networks connect, 
represent, and lobby for 
leaders in industry and 
across all industries. They 
also provide them with 
informed perspectives on 
industry issues, expert 
briefings, networking 
opportunities, and industry-
led training programmes.
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Childhood Services Childhood Services Ireland

Construction Property & Engineering Property Industry Ireland (PII)

Construction Property & Engineering Building Materials Federation (BMF)

Construction Property & Engineering Cement Manufacturers Ireland(CMI)

Construction Property & Engineering Federation of Aerospace Engineering industries (FAEI)

Construction Property & Engineering Forest Industries Ireland

Construction Property & Engineering Irish Decorative Surfaces Coating Association (IDSCA)

Construction Property & Engineering Irish Plastic Pipe Manufacturers Association

Construction Property & Engineering Polymer Technology Ireland

Financial Services Financial Services Ireland (FSI)

Financial Services Aircraft Leasing Ireland

Food and Drink Food Drink Ireland (FDI)

Food and Drink Dairy Industry Ireland (DII)

Food and Drink Meat Industry Ireland (MII)

Food and Drink Irish Beverage Council (IBC)

Food and Drink Drinks Ireland

Food and Drink Drinks Ireland | Beer

Food and Drink Drinks Ireland | Cider

Food and Drink Drinks Ireland | Spirits

Food and Drink Drinks Ireland | Wine

Food and Drink Irish Whiskey Association

Food and Drink Chocolate and Confectionery Association of Ireland (CCAI)

Food and Drink Federation of Irish Renderers (FIR)

Food and Drink Irish Bread Bakers Association (IBBA)

Food and Drink Irish Breakfast Cereals Association

Food and Drink Irish Cold Storage Federation (ICSF)

Food and Drink Petfood Association of Ireland (PFAI)

Food and Drink Foods for Special Medical Purposes

Infrastructure Irish Ports Association (IPA)

Life Sciences and Healthcare Biopharmachem Ireland (BPCI)

Life Sciences and Healthcare Irish Medtech Association

Life Sciences and Healthcare Irish Cosmetics Detergents Association (ICDA)

Retail Retail Ireland

Small & Medium Sized Enterprises Small Firms Association (SFA)

Technology, Telecoms, and Audio Visual Technology Ireland

Technology Telecomms and Audiovisual Telecommunications Industry Ireland

Technology Telecomms and Audiovisual Audiovisual Ireland

Technology Telecomms and Audiovisual White Goods Association (WGA)

Technology Telecomms and Audiovisual Cloud Infrastructure Ireland
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Our trade associations have been to the fore in helping their sectors to respond to the 
challenges of Covid, Brexit, Skills, Regulation, Sustainability, Digitisation and much more.

We were delighted to welcome two new trade associations within the past year; namely, 
Food for Special Medical Purposes and Cloud Infrastructure Ireland.

Aircraft Leasing Ireland

Aircraft Leasing Ireland (ALI) is the unified voice for the aircraft leasing 
sector in Ireland and globally.  In the past year, ALI continued its focus 
on double tax treaty network development, talent & skills, technology 
and sector competitiveness, as well as broadening its stakeholder 
engagement at national, European and international level to address 
the challenges of COVID-19 and sustainability.

Biopharmachem Ireland 

Biopharmachem Ireland (BPCI) represents over 75 multinational and 
Irish SME members with exports in excess of €90B and over 50,000 
people employed across all regions of Ireland. Over the course of 
the last year BCPI, in partnership with the IDA, (bio)pharma and 
technology partners, have activated a lighthouse-type collaboration 
to advance a digital and sustainability exemplar within the (bio)
pharmachem sector. Our research has shown that over the next 
five years (2021 – 2025) that there will be significant job creation 
and high-tech skills requirements within these sectors, particularly 
under the themes of Advanced Manufacturing, Data Analytics, Data 
Modelling and Cell and Gene Therapies and Digital Transformation.

Childhood Services Ireland 

Since Childhood Services Ireland (CSI) launched in September 2020, 
we have become a truly trusted and respected consultative partner 
of the Government and are key stakeholders in all the high-level 
fora. CSI brings together childcare providers from a diverse range of 
services as the strong unifying voice of providers in Ireland. CSI are 
the leading provider voice in establishing the Early Years Services 
Joint Labour Committee to examine staff terms and conditions within 
the sector and have been highly engaged with the Department of 
Children in making significant improvements to the Funding Model to 
address affordability for parents and sustainability for providers.
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Cloud Infrastructure Ireland

Cloud Infrastructure Ireland (CII) is a new Ibec trade association 
formed in 2021, which is focused on the infrastructure policy 
issues that affect cloud providers. Ireland’s cloud infrastructure 
enables much of the Irish and global digital economy worth billions 
and is responsible for tens of thousands of jobs. A thriving cloud 
infrastructure is vital to Ireland’s economic success, as a growing 
number of businesses locate in regions with well-developed 
cloud infrastructure. CII seeks partnerships with national and local 
governments to protect and nurture cloud infrastructure to enhance 
Ireland’s global economic standing.

Dairy Industry Ireland and Meat Industry Ireland

Dairy Industry Ireland
Over the past year, Dairy Industry Ireland continued to help guide 
member companies through the triple challenges of Sustainability, 
Covid & Brexit; the highlight being the commissioning of an impact 
assessment of Covid on the Irish dairy and specialised nutrition industry, 
which drove significant policy change in Ireland & Europe.

The year has also been one of growth for the association, with the 
welcome launch of the Foods for Special Medical Purposes (FSMP) 
group in January 2021. As we move through 2021, Dairy Industry 
Ireland is leading out on the climate challenge for members, leading on a 
wide suite of national projects that are driving our industry towards world 
class sustainability metrics while protecting the economic success story 
of the industry.

Meat Industry Ireland 
Throughout the pandemic, Meat Industry Ireland (MII) has worked 
intensively with members, Government, public health authorities and 
other State Agencies to deliver on the twin objectives of keeping 
employees safe and well, while maintaining business continuity to 
optimum effect. MII has played a central role, on behalf of members, 
in engaging with the HSE on the serial PCR testing programme and 
with DAFM and HSE on the deployment of rapid antigen testing. Early 
2021 also saw the Government announcement of a major capital 
investment programme for the meat processing sector, which was the 
culmination of several years work by MII.



Ibec Annual Report 2020/2021
36

Trade Associations and Groups
37

Drinks Ireland 

Throughout the Covid-19 pandemic, Drinks Ireland has played a 
pivotal role in supporting our customers in the hospitality sector 
on the reopening agenda, through our #BeSound #OpeningTime 
and our #TogetherAgain campaigns.  We lobbied successfully for 
a suspension of tariffs on spirits in two US-EU-UK trade disputes; 
helped our members navigate Brexit issues; secured no increase in 
excise duty for the 8th consecutive budget and a reasonable timeline 
for the implementation of Minimum Unit Pricing.  Work is progressing 
well on the introduction of a Deposit Return Scheme on aluminium 
cans.  Our category associations for Beer, Cider, Irish Whiskey, Spirits 
and Wine continue to promote, protect and represent members’ 
interests effectively.

Financial Services Ireland 

During the past year, Financial Services Ireland (FSI) focused on 
supporting our members through the pandemic and accelerating 
the delivery of the association’s strategy. In September 2020, we 
published the seminal document ‘Ireland’s future through finance’, 
mapping out how the financial services sector can significantly 
contribute to Ireland’s economic and societal growth. Over the 
coming year we will drive initiatives centred on digital innovation, 
fintech, diversity and culture, talent and skills, the regulatory 
environment and, sustainable finance. 

Food Drink Ireland

Sustainable Food Systems (SFS) are the priority issue for Food 
Drink Ireland (FDI). Over the last year, the group contributed to 
and influenced key SFS initiatives including the national Agri-food to 
2030 Strategy, the EU Code of Conduct on responsible food business 
and marketing practices, the UN Food Systems Summit 2021, and 
the development of an Irish deposit and return scheme for beverage 
containers. FDI has also continued to support members on the 
implementation of Brexit, both from an import and export perspective, 
and on Covid risk mitigation measures in the workplace.

Forest Industries Ireland 

Over the past year, Forest Industries Ireland (FII) has been working 
hard to boost afforestation levels and supplies of timber to the Irish 
sawmills. FII have been intensively engaged with the Department of 
Agriculture to address licensing issues in the sector and build a solid 
platform for forestry and timber to grow in the years ahead.
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Irish Medtech Association

Over the past year, the Irish Medtech Association has lobbied on 
issues including, the EU Medical Device and InVitro Diagnostics 
Regulations, the Government’s ‘National Industry 4.0 Strategy 2020 
– 2025’, the ‘Apprenticeship Action Plan 2021-2025’, and developed 
a policy paper as part of the ‘Where Digital Health Thrives’ cross-
sectoral campaign. To offer global insights the group hosted ‘Global 
Access’, ‘Medtech Rising: The CEO Conference and Awards’, and 
the ‘Manufacturing the Future Conference’, along with numerous 
working group meetings and events such as ‘Pride and bringing your 
whole self to work’. The Association is now setting out its vision for 
the future with a new four-year strategy.

Property Industry Ireland 

Property Industry Ireland set out its lobbying recommendations in a 
submission to the Governments 10 year housing policy plan ‘Housing 
for all’, which included matters such as planning system reform, the 
increased use of modern methods of construction and the viability 
of affordable housing delivery in Ireland. PII also lobbied for the safe 
re-opening of the construction sector during extended periods of 
sectoral lockdown over the past year.

Public sector representation

Over the past 12 months, the agility, resilience and extraordinary 
importance of Ireland’s public sector organisations came into sharp 
relief. Throughout this intense period of unprecedented flux, Ibec 
was proud to stand with and support our public sector members 
through advocacy, networking and HR supports. During this 
period, over 140 public sector organisations actively engaged via 
an expanded programme of Ibec meetings and events on a wide 
range of topics, including mental health and wellbeing, cybersecurity 
and fraud, diversity and inclusion, corporate governance and crisis 
communications. Ibec was also proud to have supported second-
level teachers and 16,000 transition year students countrywide with 
our inaugural TY Talks 2021 conference. We further supported over 
600 students and career guidance professionals in further and higher 
education via our ‘Future of Work’ series, which profiled careers in the 
Biopharma, MedTech and Technology sectors.

Retail Ireland 

In the last year, Retail Ireland has worked with its members and 
Government to ensure that the needs of the sector are fully reflected 
in decisions around Covid public health restrictions and enterprise 
supports. The group has supported members adapting to Brexit and 
recently published a Community Report that showcases the crucial 
role the sector plays in communities all across the country. The report 
highlights key areas where retail makes a substantial and meaningful 
contribution to Irish life and provides a range of real-life examples and 
case studies to support this.



Ibec Annual Report 2020/2021
38

Trade Associations and Groups
39

Small Firms Association

Over the past year, the Small Firms Association launched the 
highly successful MentorsWork programme - a structured 12-week 
business-support programme, comprising an integrated approach 
of mentoring and targeted learning opportunities for small business. 
MentorsWork won the IITD Award for the best Coaching/Mentoring 
initiative in 2021. 

The Small Firms Association also took a leading role in advocating 
for small business during the pandemic and during the reopening 
phase, involved in highlighting the rising costs of business, and the 
introduction of the Small Company Administrative Rescue Process - a 
slimmed down version of examinership.

Technology Ireland

Over the past twelve months, Technology Ireland has continued 
to deliver on the association’s key goals to make Ireland a global 
technology powerhouse and to be the catalyst that delivers the most 
effective change for the technology sector in Ireland. Through our 
policy strategy document, ‘Future Needs, Future Thinking 2021’, we 
have advocated on behalf of members across four key pillars which 
are the technology sector in a changing world; data policy issues; 
education and skills; and taxation policy and investment support - 
all of which will shape the ongoing and future success of the Irish 
Technology Sector.

Telecommunications Industry Ireland

Over the last 12 months, Telecommunications Industry Ireland has 
briefed government and opposition parties on issues of concern 
to the sector. It engaged extensively with the Department of 
Environment, Climate and Communications to obtain a pragmatic 
transposition of the European Electronic Communications Code and 
adequate notice of its implementation. Telecommunications played 
a crucial role in enabling the country to work and study from home. 
To maximise the sector’s contribution to post pandemic economic 
recovery, political support for the deployment of 5G, fibre and 
telecommunications infrastructure generally will be essential as will the 
removal of planning and administrative barriers to this.  
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We support our members’ 
people management needs 
by offering a range of 
professional services. 
 
We represent, advise and 
inform to help you build 
your people management 
capabilities and reduce your 
exposure to disputes and 
penalties. Our employer 
relations services provide 
clear insights, expertise 
and services in the areas of 
workplace relations, industrial 
relations, strategic human 
resources and occupational 
health and safety.

Employer Relations
41
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Employer Relations 

Our experts represent member 
organisations in negotiations with 
trade unions at company level and 
at industrial relations institutions; 
guide members in dealing with the 
Workplace Relations Commission; 
and represent members at 
mediation, adjudication hearings 
and before the Labour Court.  
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direct service member interactions 

70,639
Over the past 12 months, the team 
have supported members through 
remote Adjudication and Conciliation 
hearings at the Workplace Relations 
Commission and the Labour Court 
with great success. 

We continue to support members 
at local negotiations across 
issues including pay and terms 
and conditions, work practices, 
redundancy & rationalisation, 
relocation and recruitment.

The evolving landscape  
of employment law in  
Ireland was the core  
theme addressed by  
Maeve McElwee, Director  
of Employer Relations,  
Ibec, at the Ibec Employment  
Law Conference 2021.
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Employment Law and Knowledge Centre 

Industrial Relations

This year has seen two significant 
industrial relations rulings by 
the Supreme Court on the 
constitutionality of the Workplace 
Relations Commission and the 
framework for making Sectoral 
Employment Orders. Ireland’s 
voluntarist status is significant as 
legislation continues to be developed 
at European level which draws 
heavily on the European tradition of 
collective bargaining arrangements. 

We need to consider how are 
employees best represented in a 
contemporary context recognising 
that Ireland’s industrial relations 
model is notably different to the 
established social dialogue and 
social insurance models within 
Europe. Ibec is engaging with the 
government through the Labour 
Employer Economic Forum to review 
our industrial relations framework.

Over the past 12 months our 
legal team and knowledge centre 
have engaged extensively with the 
Labour Employer Economic Forum 
subgroups, government departments 
and regulatory bodies such as 
the Revenue Commissioners to 
influence and navigate a myriad of 
new employment regulations as well 
as complex Covid-19 employment 
supports. 

Over 60 legal guidance notes, 
webinars and podcasts, plus 
numerous HR & Sector briefings 
were delivered on all HR and OHS 
aspects of Covid-19, as well as 
topics such as mental health, 
family leave and hybrid working. 

Submissions to government were 
made on issues including Remote 
Working, Right to Disconnect, 
Whistleblowing and the EU Directive 
on Adequate Minimum Wages, 
representing members views on  
the specific issues as well as 
the burden of ever-increasing 
employment rights legislation.

Every Ibec member has access to 
an Ibec advisor who together with 
our knowledge centre and our legal 
services provide comprehensive 
advice on interpretation of 
employment legislation, best practice 
and human resource and industrial 
relations management.

Pauline O’Hare  
Employment Law Conference



Ibec Annual Report 2020/2021
44

Employer Relations
45

Ibec Voices - Work Talks

KC Connect

Ibec Voices - Work Talks, Ibec’s 
Employer Relations podcast series, 
was launched in June 2021 to share 
strategic thinking on all aspects of 
employer relations. The series offers 
unique thought leadership on the 

employment landscape in Ireland – 
examining future trends, legislative 
and regulatory developments and 
insights into the practical applications 
of employment policy in workplaces.

In April 2021, Ibec’s Knowledge 
Centre launched a new series of 
bitesize webinars. The “KC Connect 
in 15” series comprises of short, 
easy to digest webinars, covering 
a range of employment legislation 
and occupational health and safety 
topics. The team have recorded eight 
webinars so far, on topics ranging 
from family leave entitlements to 
working permissions in Ireland.
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Commercial 
Services

We reach out regularly, both formally 
and informally, to get feedback from 
our members and are very proud 
of our staff who are always looking 
for ways to enhance our products 
and services. We keep our members 
connected through our events, 
briefings, research and insights.
We also support skills development 
through our Skillnet Projects, 
industry led apprenticeship training 
programmes, and Management 
Training programmes. Our members 
can also enhance their employee’s 
workplace wellbeing through 
participation in our KeepWell Mark.

Commercial Services
47
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The pandemic gave rise to a shift towards stakeholder 
capitalism – where companies create sustainable value 
for all stakeholders, customers, employees, suppliers, 
communities, the environment and shareholders. The 
conference explored the leadership role that business 
plays in moving this forward and how they can work 
with all their stakeholders to help address pressing and 
often connected issues, such as racial and economic 
inequality and environmental sustainability.  

Headlining the conference in February was Paul 
Polman, former CEO of Unilever and Co-founder & 
Chair of IMAGINE. Paul was joined by: Julie Sweet, 
Chief Executive Officer, Accenture; Christa Davies, CFO 
and Executive Vice President of Global Finance for 
Aon; Matthew Harrington, COO and Global President 
of Edelman; Katherine White, Chief Talent Officer at 
Spencer Stuart; and, Fernando Vicario, CEO of Bank of 
America Europe.

Ibec Business Leaders Conference

Ibec’s Regional Insight Series explored what steps are 
necessary to galvanise businesses on a set of actions 
to create a sustainable economy and society, making 
all our regions better places to live and work in. Key 
themes included the twin challenges of Covid and 
Brexit along with urban and regional development. 
The event took place virtually in December 2020 and 
each of Ibec’s seven regions had its own breakout 
session and virtual networking room, to facilitate 
relevant localised discussions and allow members 
to identify and engage with their regional peers 
and stakeholders.   

Ibec Regional Insights Series

Putting stakeholder capitalism into practice: Fernando 
Vicario, CEO and Executive Director, Bank of America 
Europe, discussing this timely issue at the Ibec Business 
Leaders Conference 2021.

“Stakeholders & Sustainability” was the theme for the 
Ibec Regional Insight Series 2020. Speakers examined the 
challenges and opportunities for stakeholder capitalism. 
Pictured here is Alastair Blair, Country Managing Director 
for Accenture in Ireland and Ibec President.
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The Ibec HR Leadership Summit is Ireland’s leading HR 
event, attracting over 400 senior HR professionals. The 
event was delivered virtually in October at a time when the 
disruptions to work forced HRDs to accelerate their focus 
on new ways of working. 

The line-up included one of the world’s most influential 
and iconoclastic business thinkers, Gary Hamel, who 
challenged the audience to think differently in how we 
manage, lead and organise our workforce and showed 
them how to make the leap from a management model 
that maximises compliance to one that maximises 
contribution. 

Alongside Gary, Jennifer Petriglieri, Associate Professor, 
INSEAD, explored how millions of couples now juggle two 
careers and family commitments under one roof 24/7 and 
the vital role organisations play in supporting them.  

HR Leadership Summit 

TY Talks21

TYTalks21 was a very special virtual event Ibec hosted 
for Transition Year students all over Ireland, in partnership 
with the National Association of Principals and Deputy 
Principles (NAPD), on 5 May.

As many TY students lost out on key learning 
opportunities and work experience because of Covid 
restrictions, TYTalks21 was designed to show students 
a preview of the world of work, the future of work, the 
essential 21st century skills and the varied skills and 
education pathways open to them.

The event, attended by almost 17,000 students, featured 
futurists, business leaders, educators, young leaders, 
and entrepreneurs, with a virtual Expo area showcasing 
learning and skills partners, an industries discovery zone 
and virtual, fun scavenger hunts.

Creating a new vision for work: This was the overarching 
theme of the Ibec HR Leadership Summit 2020, which 
was addressed by Maeve McElwee, Director of Employer 
Relations, Ibec.

TY Talks: Keynote speaker Barry Winkless, CSO Cpl and 
Head of the Future of Work Institute addresses attendees 
of this virtual event. 
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Ibec Skillnet Networks

21
Years in existence 

11 
Ibec Skillnet Networks

183,500+ 
Training days in 2020

2,350+ 
Companies engaged 

550+ 
Programmes 

60 
Students trained

2 
Ibec Programmes

3 
years in existence 

6 
Ibec Apprenticeships 

8 
certified industry  
led programmes 

185+ 
companies engaged

€16.5 Million
Total Funding (grant & matched)

 Each Skillnet Network brings  
together companies from an industry 
sector who work together to develop 
training programmes for their 
industry in sectors such as retail, 
manufacturing, and engineering.

 Ibec has 11 Skillnet Networks  
funded by Skillnet Ireland and 
member companies
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Management 
Training – new 
brand for a new era
Ibec’s learning and development unit has rebranded and 
changed its name to become the Ibec Academy. This 
rebrand comes as a result of a major business review of 
Ibec’s management training business to gear it up for an 
expansive future, while honouring its legacy as Ireland’s 
leading provider of premium management development 
programmes for over 30 years.

Armed with a modern, progressive new brand identity, 
the Ibec Academy has evolved its programme offering 
to address the trends that are now shaping the future of 
work and the top management topics and challenges in 
areas such as remote and hybrid work, leadership and 
managing people, environmental, social & governance 
(ESG), strategy, innovation, diversity & inclusion, and 
employee wellbeing. 

With its deep understanding of Irish business and 
industry and its strong partnering culture, the Ibec 
Academy delivers impactful learning by bringing 
real-world application and emergent thinking to its 
Management, Employment Law, Industrial Relations, 
Occupational Health & Safety, Human Resource 
Management, Executive Development, Strategy and 
Innovation programmes.

In 2020, over 100 accredited Diploma, Certificate and 
short programmes were run on multiple occasions, with 
over 8,000 managers trained online.  More than 350 
proud graduates also received their Ibec / TU Dublin 
accredited awards on completion of their Management 
and OHS programmes during 2020.

Ibec Global 
Graduate 
Programme
The Ibec Global Graduates programme places  
graduates attracted by an international career on 
paid work placements around the world, with leading 
companies, over 12-18- 24 months.

Graduates receive real, hands-on, experience in an 
international business environment, while completing  
a Level 9 Postgraduate award in Global Business. 

The programme is designed to deliver a high-quality 
global business educational programme, enhancing 
the skills and knowledge of individual participants, 
allowing them to contribute to the development of their 
organisation’s international presence. 

In 2020 Ibec screened over 1,000 bright young people 
from a range of different educational backgrounds,  
from around Ireland and Internationally, of which over  
450 were interviewed. 36 graduates were then placed 
with 21 companies, across a variety of industries,  
in over 10 countries. 

Ibec 
Academy
We know 
Business

Applied, accredited and impactful 
learning in Management, HR, 
Employment Law and Health 
& Safety for your organisation. 

Open and customised 
courses available.

Visit ibecacademy.ie
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Ibec, in partnership with Business & Finance Media 
Group, launched an index of the top 100 companies 
leading in wellbeing. This index, the first of its kind in 
Ireland recognises the top businesses of all sizes who  
are leading the way and have improved their performance 
in supporting employee mental health and wellbeing.  
The index is comprised exclusively of companies in  
Ibec’s KeepWell community. 

National Workplace 
Wellbeing Day 
2021
Ibec was proud to host National Workplace 
Wellbeing Day for the seventh year in a row

Ibec hosted its 7th National Workplace Wellbeing Day on 
Friday 30 April 2021 with over 1,000 companies across 
Ireland participating. As the first country in Europe to put 
in place a day devoted to workplace wellbeing, Ireland is 
truly leading the way in this regard. Participating in the day 
offered companies a unique opportunity to celebrate and 
showcase all of the activities that they put in place for their 
employees throughout the year. 

Leading in  
Wellbeing  
– Top 100

The KeepWell Summit: Sharon 
Higgins, Director of Membership 
and Sectors, Ibec, speaking on 
24 June 2021 at Ibec’s flagship 
workplace wellbeing event.
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120+ companies enrolled in  
Ibec’s KeepWell Mark™

2020 saw corporate wellbeing take on increased strategic significance 
and The KeepWell Mark, Ibec’s workplace wellbeing accreditation 
programme for embedding workplace wellbeing in organisations, has 
never been busier. On August 25, at the KeepWell Awards Ceremony, 
we recognised AbbVie, Bristol Myers-Squibb, Fidelity International, 
John Sisk & Son, Oberstown, Pramerica and Roche for their best in 
class corporate wellbeing programmes.

The KeepWell Summit: Sharon 
Higgins, Director of Membership and 
Sectors, Ibec, speaking on 24 June 
2021 at Ibec’s flagship workplace 
wellbeing event.
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Commercial 
Services

Since the inception of 
the International Business 
Division in July 2020, work 
has been underway to 
develop a strategy and 
model that will deliver on 
Ibec’s purpose.

Over the past year we 
have been building and 
strengthening international 
relationships and networks, 
raising Ibec’s profile on 
issues globally that have 
the greatest impact on our 
economy and society, and 
exploring potential high-value 
programs and initiatives that 
will be designed to enhance 
support for businesses that 
do business in, with and 
through Ireland.

International Business
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Diversity and Inclusion, 
and more specifically equality: 

Climate and sustainability:

Highlights

Ibec partnered with Calloway Climate Insights as 
European partner for a virtual event on ESG and 
sustainability for corporates and business, featuring 
keynote speaker Frans Timmermans, European 
Commission Executive Vice-President for the European 
Green Deal.

Ibec Global hosted an international, virtual, interactive, 
and timely discussion on Global Leadership in Action - 
Achieving an Equal Future by Getting Serious About 
Gender Equity. The speakers and panel discussions 
focused on equity as a means of achieving equality 
bridging the gaps on equality through laws, polices and 
gender focused programs that level the playing field and 
change culture to be supportive of the diverse needs of 
women and gender-diverse people. Speakers included 
Frances Fitzgerald MEP, Vice Chair of the EPP Group 
and Coordinator for the EPP Group on the Committee on 
Women’s Rights and Gender Equality; Donna Leinwand 
Leger, President and Founder of DC Media Strategies 
LLC, Chair of the National Press Foundation, and former 
Managing Editor, USA TODAY; Vicki Saunders, Founder, 
SheEO; and Hanni Rosenbaum, Executive Director, 
Business at OECD (BIAC). Each speaker was followed by 
a panel discussion with: Mairéad Nayager, Global Chief 
HR Officer, Diageo; Annemarie Muntz, Managing Director, 
Global Public Affairs, Randstad; and Janice McDonald, 
Canadian-based  entrepreneur, author, independent 
director and international speaker.

Getting serious about gender equity: Jackie King, 
Executive Director, International Business, Ibec, and 
Frances Fitzgerald MEP, pictured at an Ibec Global 
virtual discussion on 19 April 2021.  
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Multilateralism: 

Digital and Cyber:

Ibec was honoured to host a fireside chat with Danny 
McCoy, CEO, Ibec, and Mary Ng, Canada’s Minister 
for Small Business, Export Promotion and International 
Trade, on the shared values with Canada and capitalising 
on the benefits of the EU-Canada Comprehensive 
Economic and Trade Agreement (CETA). The virtual event 
also featured a conversation with Dr. Eamonn McKee, 
Ambassador of Ireland to Canada, and Dr. Melita Gabrič, 
Ambassador of the European Union to Canada. 

Ibec hosted an international virtual event, Boards and 
CEOs – What you need to know about Cybersecurity 
& the questions you need to ask your CISO. The Event 
featured Professor Ciaran Martin, who founded the UK’s 
world leading National Cyber Security Centre and headed 
it for the first four years of its existence, and Billy Kelleher 
MEP, Rapporteur on DORA (Digital Operational Resilience 
Act). Attendees were from business and stakeholder 
groups from across Ireland and Europe. 

The importance of multilateralism: Danny McCoy, CEO, Ibec, 
and Mary Ng, Canada’s Minister for Small Business, Export 
Promotion and International Trade, discussing economic and 
cultural ties between Ireland and Canada. 

Cyber Security: On 15 April 2021, Ibec Global held a 
timely virtual discussion on this pivotal issue for business. 
Pictured are at the event are: Jackie King, Executive Director, 
International Business, Ibec; Liam O’Donoghue, Deputy 
CEO/COO, Ibec; and, Ciaran Martin, Professor of Practice, 
Blavatnik School of Government, University of Oxford.
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Commentary on Ibec Accounts 2020

Ibec principally trades through two legal entities – Irish Business and Employers Confederation Trade Union and Ibec 
Company Limited by Guarantee. Whilst under FRS rules Ibec cannot file consolidated accounts, the combined results 
of both entities would show that:

Total Income in 2020 increased by €0.5m to €35.4m (2019: €34.9m). Expenditure decreased by €1.1m to €31.4m 
(2019: €32.5m). This resulted in an overall profit before tax in 2020 of €4m (2019: €2.4m).

Further details by legal entity are set out here.

Irish Business and Employers Confederation Trade Union Accounts 2020
Membership subscription income decreased by €88k to €7.6m (2019: €7.7m).

The contribution from affiliates was €2.2m an increase of €610k on 2019 reflecting an increased contribution relating to 
the closure of the legacy defined benefit pension scheme liability.

Expenditure of €6.8m in 2020 was down €202k on 2019.

This resulted in a profit before tax of €3m against the 2019 profit of €2.2m.

Ibec Company Limited by Guarantee Accounts 2020
Overall income of €27.8m was an increase of €0.6m on 2019.

The positive movement reflects increased membership contributions (new sectors and membership upgrades).

Expenditure was €26.7m, a decrease of €0.3m on 2019, mainly reflecting reduced travel and office running costs due 
to restrictions imposed by the Covid-19 pandemic. We continue to invest in critical areas of our strategy in order to 
grow our membership and commercial services.

Both Ibec’s core business and ring-fenced activity for our Trade Associations recorded a profit in 2020.

Overall Ibec CLG recorded a profit before tax of €1.1m against the 2019 profit of €132k.
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Employers Confederation 
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Financial Statements for 
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Trustees’ and Other Information

TRUSTEES Gary McGann
 Leo Crawford
 Margot Slattery
 Carolan Lennon
 Larry Murrin

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER Danny McCoy

TREASURER Liam O’Donoghue

PRESIDENT Alastair Blair

DEPUTY PRESIDENT Frank Gleeson

SECRETARY AND HEAD OFFICE Claire McHugh
 Confederation House
 84/86 Lower Baggot Street
 Dublin 2

REGISTERED NUMBER 454T

AUDITOR Deloitte Ireland LLP
 Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
 Deloitte & Touche House
 Earlsfort Terrace
 Dublin 2

SOLICITOR A & L Goodbody
 IFSC
 North Wall Quay
 Dublin 1

PRINCIPAL BANKER Bank of Ireland
 2 College Green
 Dublin 2
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Trustees’ Responsibilities Statement

The Rules of the Confederation require the Trustees to ensure that financial 
statements are prepared for each financial year that give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Confederation and of the surplus or deficit for that 
period. In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
• ensure that adequate financial controls are in place and competent financial 

management is employed;
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is 

inappropriate to presume that the Confederation will continue in operation.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping proper books of account which 
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
Confederation and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements 
comply with the Rules of the Confederation and are prepared in accordance 
with accounting standards generally accepted in Ireland. They are also 
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Confederation and hence 
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and 
other irregularities.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Trustees of the Irish Business and Employers Confederation

Report on the audit of 
the financial statements
Opinion on the financial 
statements of The Irish Business 
and Employers Confederation 
(the ‘Confederation’)

In our opinion the 
financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the 
assets, liabilities and financial 
position of the Trade Union as at 
31 December 2020 and of the 
surplus of the Trade Union for the 
financial year then ended; and

• have been properly prepared 
in accordance with the relevant 
financial reporting framework.

The financial statements we have 
audited comprise:

• the Profit and Loss Account;
• the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income;
• the Balance Sheet;
• the Statement of Changes 

in Equity;
• the Statement of Cash Flow; and
• the related notes 1 to 21, 

including a summary of significant 
accounting policies as set out in 
note 3.

The relevant financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is the Trade Union 
Acts 1871-1990 and FRS 102 
“The Financial Reporting Standard 
applicable in the UK and Republic 
of Ireland” issued by the Financial 
Reporting Council (“the relevant 
financial reporting framework”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in 
accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs 
(Ireland)) and applicable law. Our 
responsibilities under those standards 
are described below in the “Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial statements” section of 
our report.

We are independent of the Trade 
Union in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in 
Ireland, including the Ethical Standard 
issued by the Irish Auditing and 
Accounting Supervisory Authority, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going 
concern

In auditing the financial statements, 
we have concluded that the Trustees 
use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the 
financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have 
performed, we have not identified 
any material uncertainties relating to 
events or conditions that, individually 
or collectively, may cast significant 
doubt on the Trade Union’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a 
period of at least twelve months from 
when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the 
responsibilities of the Trustees 
with respect to going concern are 
described in the relevant sections of 
this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the 
information included in the Trustees’ 
Report and Financial Statements, 
other than the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon. 
The Trustees are responsible for the 
other information contained within the 
Trustees’ Report.

Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent 
otherwise explicitly stated in our 
report, we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If we identify 
such material inconsistencies or 
apparent material misstatements, we 
are required to determine whether 
there is a material misstatement 
in the financial statements or a 
material misstatement of the other 
information. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in 
this regard.
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Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the 
Trustees’ Responsibilities Statement, 
the trustees are responsible for 
the preparation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair 
view, and otherwise comply with 
the Trade Union Acts 1871-1990, 
and for such internal control as the 
Trustees determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, 
the Trustees are responsible for 
assessing the Trade Union’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Trustees either 
intend to liquidate the Trade Union 
or to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with 
ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance 
with ISAs (Ireland), we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of 
material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of 
internal control relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Trade 
Union’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures 
made by the Trustees.

• Conclude on the appropriateness 
of the Trustees’ use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Trade 
Union’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of the 
auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause 
the Trade Union to cease to 
continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, 
structure and content of the 
financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

We communicate with those 
charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that the auditor identifies 
during the audit.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the 
Trade Union’s Trustees, as a body, 
in accordance with Section 11 of 
the Trade Union Act 1871. Our 
audit work has been undertaken 
so that we might state to the Trade 
Union’s Trustees those matters 
we are required to state to them 
in an auditor’s report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept 
or assume responsibility to anyone 
other than the Trade Union and the 
Trade Union’s Trustees as a body, for 
our audit work, for this report, or for 
the opinions we have formed.

Michael Hartwell

For and on behalf of 
Deloitte Ireland LLP
Chartered Accountants 
and Statutory Audit Firm
Deloitte & Touche House, 
Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2 

Date: 31 May 2021
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Profit and Loss Account
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

Notes 2020 2019
€ €

Turnover 5 7,634,399 7,722,394

Administration expenses (6,005,381) (6,021,715)

Establishment expenses (618,572) (679,125)

Travel and motor expenses (32,785) (118,514)

Depreciation (183,154) (174,066)

Operating Profit Before Contribution From Affiliate 6 794,507 728,974

Contribution from affiliate 2,171,976 1,561,601

Profit on Ordinary Activities Before Interest and Taxation 2,966,483 2,290,575

Interest receivable and similar income 8  - 1,904

Interest payable and similar charges 8 (37,590) (85,549)

Profit on Ordinary Activities Before Taxation  2,928,893 2,206,930

Tax on profit on ordinary activities 9 (413,163) (207,156)

Profit for the Financial Year 2,515,730 1,999,774
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

Notes 2020 2019
€ €

Profit for the financial year 2,515,730 1,999,774

Loss on impairment of tangible assets 11 - (358,508)

Other comprehensive income for the financial year, net of tax - (358,508)

Total Comprehensive Income for the Financial Year 2,515,730 1,641,266
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2020

Notes 2020 2019
€ €

Fixed assets

Intangible assets 10 268,229 250,310

Tangible assets 11 1,572,532 1,558,244

1,840,761 1,808,554

Current assets

Debtors 12 130,845 129,409

Cash at bank and on hand 21,783,384 17,730,190

21,914,229 17,859,599

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 13 (21,601,440) (19,678,229)

Net current assets/(liabilities) 312,789 (1,818,630)

Total assets less current liabilities 2,153,550 (10,076)

Creditors: (amounts falling due after one year)

Deferred tax liability 14 (291,488) (291,488)

Pension liability 14 (1,246,050) (1,632,988)

Provisions for liabilities and charges 14 (174,167) (139,333)

Net Assets/(Liabilities) 441,845 (2,073,885)

Reserves

General funds (901,865) (3,417,595)

Revaluation reserve 1,161,199 1,161,199

Capital reserve 182,511 182,511

Total surplus/(deficit) 441,845 (2,073,885)

The financial statements were approved by the Trustees on 27/05/2021 and signed on their behalf by: 

 

Leo Crawford Gary McGann
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

lbec core 
reserves

Revaluation 
reserve

Capital 
Reserve

Total

€ € € €

Balance at 1 January 2019 (5,417,369) 1,519,707 182,511 (3,715,151)

Profit for the financial year 1,999,774 - - 1,999,774

Other comprehensive income for the financial year - (358,508) - (358,508)

Total comprehensive income for the financial year 1,999,774 (358,508) - 1,641,266

Balance at 31 December 2019 (3,417,595) 1,161,199 182,511 (2,073,885)

Balance at 1 January 2020 (3,417,595) 1,161,199 182,511 (2,073,885)

Profit for the financial year 2,515,730 - - 2,515,730

Other comprehensive income for the financial year - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the financial year 2,515,730 - - 2,515,730

At 31 December 2020 (901,865) 1,161,199 182,511 441,845
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

Notes 2020 2019
€ €

Cash from operations 18 4,317,208 2,336,700

Taxes refund (11,062) (16,295)

Net cash generated from operating activities 4,306,146 2,320,405

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (103,345) (81,583)

Purchase of intangible fixed assets (112,017) (119,392)

Net cash used in investing activities (215,362) (200,975)

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest received - 1,904

Interest paid (37,590) (85,549)

Net cash used in financing activities (37,590) (83,645)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,053,194 2,035,785

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 17,730,190 15,694,405

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 21,783,384 17,730,190

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

Cash at bank and in hand 18,427,866 11,634,697

Short term deposits 3,355,518 6,095,493

Cash and cash equivalents 21,783,384 17,730,190
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

1 General Information
Irish Business and Employers Confederation (“lbec”) is incorporated as a Friendly Society in the Republic of 
Ireland under the Trade Union Acts, 1896 to 2014. The address of its registered office is Confederation House, 
84/86 Lower Baggot Street, Dublin 2. lbec is involved in the representation of members’ interests at national 
and international level and the provision of industrial relations services. The Confederation has operations in the 
Republic of Ireland and provides services to Irish registered companies.

The Irish Business and Employers Confederation organisation recharge management, personnel and financial 
resources to lbec Company Limited By Guarantee and its subsidiary undertakings and these financial statements 
reflect the income and expenditure of lbec net of management recharges.

These financial statements reflect income, expenditure, assets and liabilities relating to the operations of lbec, 
and do not deal with the activities and balances relating to lbec Company Limited By Guarantee operations or its 
subsidiary undertakings. Separate financial statements have been prepared for those entities.

2 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with Irish GAAP 
(accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK and promulgated by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in Ireland, and the Trade Union Acts, 1896 to 2014). The entity financial statements comply 
with Financial Reporting Standard 102, The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
lreland (FRS 102) and the Trade Union Acts, 1896 to 2014.

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These 
polices have been consistently applied to all financial years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the 
measurement of jewellery and paintings at their deemed cost on transition to FRS 102 and same for the revaluation 
of long leasehold land.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain key assumptions 
concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date. It also requires the 
trustees to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the lbec accounting policies. The areas involving a 
higher degree of judgement or areas where assumptions and estimates have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are disclosed in Note 4.

Going concern

The balance sheet of lbec at 31 December 2020 shows an excess of assets over liabilities of €441,845 (2019: 
net liabilities of €2.1m) and net current assets of €312,789 (2019: net current liabilities of €1.8m). lbec reported 
an operating surplus during the financial year ending 31 December 2020. The Trustees, having reviewed current 
performance and forecasts, including specific consideration of the potential risks associated with COVID-19, are 
satisfied that the confederation will continue to generate sufficient operating surpluses and cash flows to meet its 
obligations, including the long term defined contribution payments, as they fall due in the future and for a period of 
at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements. As a result, these financial statements 
have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets, except long leasehold premises, are carried at cost (or deemed cost) less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes the original purchase price, costs directly 
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for its intended use, applicable 
dismantling, removal and restoration costs and borrowing costs capitalised.

Long leasehold premises are included at valuation being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any 
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any subsequent impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost or valuation of tangible fixed assets over their estimated useful 
lives, as follows:

Jewellery and paintings  20 years straight line
Freehold premises 68 years straight line
Computer equipment  4 years straight line
Furniture, fittings, office machinery  12.5% reducing balance

Intangible assets

Computer software is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Software 
is amortised over its estimated useful life, of between three and five years, on a straight-line basis. Software is not 
considered to have a residual value.

Where factors, such as technological advancement or changes in market prices, indicate that the software’s useful 
life has changed, the useful life is amended prospectively to reflect the new circumstances.

Intangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment if there is an indication that the intangible fixed asset may 
be impaired.

Leased assets

Operating leases do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessor. Payments under 
operating leases are recognised in the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid 
investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current 
liabilities. Cash and cash equivalents are initially measured at transaction price and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

Income tax

Income tax expense for the financial year comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the financial year. 
Income tax expense is presented in the same component of total comprehensive income (profit and loss 
account or other comprehensive income) or equity as the transaction or other event that resulted in the income 
tax expense.

Current or deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Current taxation
Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the financial year or past 
financial years. Current tax is measured at the amount of current tax that is expected to be paid using tax rates and 
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the financial year.

The trustees periodically evaluate positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulation is subject to interpretation. A current tax liability is recognised where appropriate and measured on the 
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred taxation
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of timing differences, which are differences between taxable profits and total 
comprehensive income as stated in the financial statements. These timing differences arise from the inclusion of 
income and expenses in tax assessments in financial years different from those in which they are recognised in 
financial statements.

Deferred tax is recognised on all timing differences at the end of each financial year with certain exceptions. 
Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only when it is probable that they will be 
recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
each financial year end and that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount.

Provisions are recognised when the Confederation has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 
events, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of 
the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation 
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the liability. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance 
cost in profit or loss, presented as part of ‘interest payable and similar charges’ in the financial year in which 
it arises.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.

In particular:

(i) Restructuring provisions are recognised when the Confederation has a legal or constructive obligation at the 
end of the financial year to carry out the restructuring. The Confederation has a constructive obligation to carry 
out a restructuring when there is a detailed, formal plan for the restructuring and the Confederation has raised 
a valid expectation in those affected by either starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features to 
those affected; and
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(ii) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities, arising as a result of past events, are not recognised as a liability because it is not probable 
that the Confederation will be required to transfer economic benefits in settlement of the obligation or the amount 
cannot be reliably measured at the end of the financial year. Possible but uncertain obligations are not recognised 
as liabilities but are contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements unless the 
probability of an outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow 
of economic benefits is probable.

Financial instruments

The Confederation has chosen to apply the provisions of Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 to account for all of its 
financial instruments.

(i) Financial assets
Basic financial assets, including trade and other debtors, cash and cash equivalents, short-term deposits and 
investments, are initially recognised at transaction price (including transaction costs), unless the arrangement 
constitutes a financing transaction.

Trade and other debtors and cash and cash equivalents are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method.

At the end of each financial year financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for objective evidence 
of impairment. If there is objective evidence that a financial asset measured at amortised cost is impaired an 
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. The impairment loss is the difference between the financial asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of the financial asset’s estimated cash inflows discounted at the asset’s 
original effective interest rate.

If, in a subsequent financial year, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be objectively 
related to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised the previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not exceed what the carrying amount would 
have been had the impairment loss not previously been recognised. The impairment reversal is recognised in profit 
or loss.

(ii) Financial liabilities
Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other creditors and loans from fellow group companies are 
initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. Where the 
arrangement constitutes a financing transaction the resulting financial liability is initially measured at the present 
value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

Trade and other creditors, loans from fellow group companies and financial liabilities from arrangements which 
constitute financing transactions are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of 
business from suppliers. Trade creditors are classified as due within one year if payment is due within one year or 
less. If not, they are presented as falling due after more than one year. Trade creditors are recognised initially at 
transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is 
discharged, cancelled or expires.

(iii)	 Off-setting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when there is an 
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is the amount of revenue derived from the provision of goods and services falling within the 
Confederation’s ordinary activities after deduction of trade discounts and value-added tax. The Confederation’s 
turnover comprises revenue arising from annual membership subscriptions and it is recognised in the year to which 
the relevant membership relates.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amount 
receivable for services rendered, net of discounts and rebates allowed by the Confederation.

Other income comprises of the contribution from lbec Ltd relating to the annual funding of the pension liability and 
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Employee benefits

The Confederation provides a range of benefits to employees, including short term employee benefits such as 
annual bonus arrangements, paid holiday arrangements and post-employment benefits (in the form of defined 
benefit or defined contribution pension plans).

Short	term	employee	benefits
Short term employee benefits, including wages and salaries, paid holiday arrangements and other similar non-
monetary benefits, are recognised as an expense in the financial year in which employees render the related 
service. The Confederation operates an annual bonus plan for employees. An expense is recognised in the profit 
and loss account when the Confederation has a present legal or constructive obligation to make payments under 
the plan as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Defined	contribution	plan
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Confederation pays fixed contributions into a 
separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions or to make direct benefit 
payments to employees if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee 
service in the current and prior periods. The assets of the plan are held separately from the Confederation in 
independently administered funds. The contributions to the defined contribution plan are recognised as an expense 
when they are due. Amounts not paid are included in accruals in the balance sheet.

4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
Estimates and judgements made in the process of preparing the consolidated financial statements are continually 
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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4 Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions (continued)
(a) Critical judgement in applying the entity’s accounting policies

There are no judgements apart from those involving estimates, made by the trustees that have had a significant 
effect on the amounts recognised in the Confederation’s financial statements.

(b) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The trustees make estimates and assumptions concerning the future in the process of preparing the financial 
statements. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The 
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(i) Impairment of debtors
The Trustees make an assessment at the end of each financial year of whether there is objective evidence 
that a trade or other debtor is impaired. When assessing impairment of trade and other debtors, the Trustees 
consider factors including the current credit rating of the debtor, the age profile of outstanding invoices, recent 
correspondence and trading activity, and historical experience of cash collections from the debtor. See note 12 for 
the net carrying amount of the debtors and the impairment provision at year end.

(ii)	 Deficit	funding	discount	rate
Management have used a discount rate of 0.5% (2019: 0.5%). This is based on the Mercer Yield Curve.

(iii) Freehold premises
The property was carried at valuation of €1,250,000 as at 31 December 2020. This is the Trustee’s estimate of fair 
value of the property, and thus is deemed to be open market value.

5 Revenue
2020 2019

€ €

All of the Confederation’s income is earned within the Republic of Ireland.

Analysis of revenue by category:

Subscription income 7,634,399 7,722,394

6 Operating Expenses
2020 2019

€ €

The operating profit has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation 89,057 100,077

Amortisation of intangible assets 94,098 73,989

Loss on debtors – (reversal)/ impairment (265) 11,464

Operating lease rentals 428,434 416,428
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7 Key Management Personnel
Key management includes the members of the senior management team. The compensation paid or payable to 
key management for employee services is shown below:

2020 2019
€ €

Salaries and other short term benefits 527,442 511,750

Post-employment benefits 75,941 56,317

Total key management compensation 603,383 568,067

Ibec has a Remuneration Committee which has full oversight over senior management compensation.

8 Net Interest Expense
2020 2019

€ €

(a) Interest receivable and similar income:

Interest on short term deposits - 1,904

Interest receivable and similar income - 1,904

(b) Interest payable and similar charges:

Unwind of discount on pension liability (33,468) (85,549)

Interest on short term deposits (4,122) -

Interest payable and similar charges (37,590) (85,549)

(c) Net interest expense:

Interest receivable and similar income - 1,904

Interest payable and similar charges (37,590) (85,549)

Net interest expense (37,590) (83,645)
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9 Taxation
(a) Tax expense included in profit or loss

2020 2019
€ €

Current tax:

Irish corporation tax at 12.5% on profit for the financial year - -

Adjustments in respect of prior financial years - 636

Current tax expense for the financial year - 636

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of timing differences 413,163 206,520

Deferred tax expense for the financial year 413,163 206,520

Tax on profit on ordinary activities 413,163 207,156

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense

Tax assessed for the financial year is lower than the current tax charge that would result from applying the standard 
rate of Irish corporation tax to the surplus. The differences are explained below:

2020 2019
€ €

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2,928,893 2,206,930

Profit multiplied by the standard rate of tax in the Republic of Ireland for the financial 
year ended 31 December 2020 of 12.5% (2019: 12.5%) 366,112 275,866

Effects	of:

Disallowable expenses (413,411) (256,698)

Income taxed at higher rate 1,115 180

Losses carried forward 46,311 (19,348)

Other 413,037 206,520

Adjustments in respect of prior years - 636

Current tax on profit on ordinary activities 413,163 207,156
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10 Intangible Assets
Software

€

Cost/valuation

At 1 January 2019 979,270

Additions 119,393

At 31 December 2019 1,098,663

At 1 January 2020 1,098,663

Additions 112,017

At 31 December 2020 1,210,680

Accumulated amortisation

At 1 January 2019 774,364

Charge for the year 73,989

At 31 December 2019 848,353

At 1 January 2020 848,353

Charge for the year 94,098

At 31 December 2020 942,451

Net book amounts

At 31 December 2020 268,229

At 31 December 2019 250,310

Software includes the Confederation’s CRM system which was acquired from an external company. This software 
is amortised over its estimated useful life, of 5 years, on a straight-line basis (2019: 5 years).There are no other 
individually material intangible fixed assets.

The useful life of this software is based on its expected utilisation by the Confederation and is consistent with 
historical experience of use patterns for similar software.
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11 Tangible Assets
Jewellery  

and paintings
Freehold 
premises

Office 
fittings

Furniture, 
fittings and 

computer 
equipment

Total

€ € € € €

Cost/valuation

At 1 January 2019 98,751 2,028,310 1,474,121 2,135,279 5,736,461

Revaluations - (358,508) - - (358,508)

Additions 5,113 - - 76,481 81,594

At 31 December 2019 103,864 1,669,802 1,474,121 2,211,760 5,459,547

At 1 January 2020 103,864 1,669,802 1,474,121 2,211,760 5,459,547

Additions 1,272 - - 102,073 103,345

At 31 December 2020 105,136 1,669,802 1,474,121 2,313,833 5,562,892

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2019 14,573 393,860 1,474,121 1,918,672 3,801,206

Revaluations - - - - -

Charge for year 5,835 25,942 - 68,300 100,077

At 31 December 2019 20,408 419,802 1,474,121 1,986,972 3,901,303

At 1 January 2020 20,408 419,802 1,474,121 1,986,972 3,901,303

Charge for year 5,898 20,161 - 62,998 89,057

At 31 December 2020 26,306 439,963 1,474,121 2,049,970 3,990,360

Net book amounts

At 31 December 2020 78,830 1,229,839 - 263,863  1,572,532

At 31 December 2019 83,456 1,250,000 - 224,788 1,558,244
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12 Debtors
2020 2019

€ €

Trade debtors 10,881 65,701

Prepayments 75,338 17,875

Deferred tax asset (note 9) 8,237 20,507

Corporation tax 36,389 25,326

130,845 129,409

Trade debtors are stated after a provision for impairment of €9,371 (2019: €13,507).

13 Creditors (amounts falling due within one year)
2020 2019

€ €

Trade creditors 185,481 192,804

Accruals 1,214,695 1,018,662

Subscriptions in advance 2,785,879 2,328,149

Amount due to lbec Limited 16,244,964 12,602,546

Pension 981,843 3,401,149

Restructuring 11,675 -

Other taxation creditors 176,903 134,919

21,601,440 19,678,229

Amounts due to lbec Limited and its subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free, repayable on demand and have no 
fixed date of repayment.
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14 Creditors (amounts falling due after more than one year)
Deferred tax 

liability
Pension 
creditor

Dilapidation Total

€ € € €

At 1 January 2019 373,988 4,603,848 114,000 5,091,836

Increase in provisions - - 25,333 25,333

Utilised during the year (82,500) - - (82,500)

Finance expense - 85,549 - 85,549

Transfer to current - (3,056,409) - (3,056,409)

At 31 December 2019 291,488 1,632,988 139,333 2,063,809

At 1 January 2020 291,488 1,632,988 139,333 2,063,809

Increase in provisions - - 34,834 34,834

Charged to profit and loss account - - - -

Utilised during the year - - - -

Finance expense - 33,468 - (33,468)

Transfer to current - (420,406) - (420,406)

At 31 December 2020 291,488 1,246,050 174,167 1,711,705

The pension liability relates to deferred contributions to the lbec defined contribution scheme, agreed on closure of 
the defined benefit scheme in 2014. Nominal future payments have been discounted as at a rate of 0.5% (2019: 
0.5%). This will not be extinguished until 31 October 2024.

The restructuring provision relates to ongoing restructuring activity.

The provision for deferred tax consists of the following deferred tax liabilities/(assets):

The deferred tax asset occurs on accelerated capital allowances on the Confederations’ other assets thus the 
asset and liability are shown gross in the financial statements.
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15 Capital and Other Commitments
The Confederation has the following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for 
each of the following periods:

2020 2019
Leases of 
buildings

Leases of 
buildings

€ €

Within one year 454,976 475,871

Between two and five years 1,748,338 1,838,010

Beyond five years 1,449,537 1,955,335

3,652,851 4,269,216

16 Reserves
A description of each reserve within equity is outlined below:

Revaluation reserve

This reserve arose on application of the revaluation model for certain classes of tangible fixed assets prior to the 
transition to FRS 102 and is attributable to the revaluation surplus on those assets at 1 January 2014 less the 
deferred tax on the revaluation timing difference.

General funds

These reserves represent accumulated comprehensive income for the financial year and prior financial years.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve arose on the sale of a leasehold interest.

17 Financial Instruments
The Confederation had the following financial instruments:

2020 2019
€ €

Financial assets that are debt instruments measured at amortised cost:

Trade debtors 12 10,881 65,701

Cash at bank and in hand 21,783,384 17,730,190

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:  
Trade creditors and accruals 13 1,400,176 1,211,466
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18 Net Cash Inflow From Operating Activities
2020 2019

€ €

Profit for the financial year 2,539,405 1,999,774

Tax on profit on ordinary activities 389,488 207,156

Net interest expense 37,590 83,645

Operating profit 2,966,483 2,290,575

Amortisation of intangible fixed assets 94,098 73,989

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 89,057 100,086

Deficit funding cash payments (800,102) (3,259,881)

lncrease in creditors 1,923,211 3,148,974

Decrease/(lncrease) in debtors 9,627 (42,376)

lncrease in provisions 34,834 25,333

Net cash inflow from operating activities 4,317,208 2,333,704

19 Related Party Transactions
The administration of lbec and its related entities is carried out by employees of the Irish Business and Employers 
Confederation. The Confederation recharges lbec Limited for payroll costs in respect of their services. The amount 
recharged during the year to 31 December 2020 by lbec was €17,024,835 (2019: €15,635,549). The recharge 
included an amount of €2,171,976 (2019: €1,561,601) in respect of contributions to the defined benefit pension 
fund, net of current service costs.

See note 7 for disclosure of key management compensation.

20 Events Since the End of the Financial Year
There are no matters or circumstances which have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly 
affected or may significantly affect the trade union.

21 Approval of Financial Statements
The trustees approved the financial statements on 27/05/2021. 

 

Leo Crawford Gary McGann
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Unaudited Income and Expenditure Account
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

Notes 2020 2019
€ €

Income 7,634,399 7,722,394

Administration costs

Personnel costs (net) 5,050,563 4,901,897

Postage and telephone 34,843 47,097

Computer expenses 220,205 232,999

Printing and stationery 70,796 79,758

General office expenses 46,045 35,972

Catering 5,101 20,013

Membership relations 9,469 27,515

Professional fees 110,361 185,557

Staff development 89,413 72,041

Insurance 21,298 22,871

Restructuring and election campaigns 185,514 208,087

Public relations 108,143 124,902

Affiliation fees 53,895 51,542

Bad debts -265 11,464

6,005,381 6,021,715

Establishment costs

Rent and rates 483,434 470,934

Light, heat and cleaning 34,221 60,078

Repairs and maintenance 100,917 148,113

618,572 679,125

Travel and motor expenses 32,785 118,505

Depreciation 183,154 174,075

Total expenditure 6,839,892 6,993,420

Operating surplus 794,507 728,974
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their report 
together with the audited financial 
statements for the financial year 
ended 31 December 2020.

Accounting Records
The measures taken by the directors 
to secure compliance with the 
company’s obligation to keep 
adequate accounting records are 
the use of appropriate systems and 
procedures and employment of 
competent persons. The books of 
account are kept at 84/86 Lower 
Baggot Street, Dublin 2.

Business Review, 
Principal Activities and 
Future Developments
The principal activities of 
the company remained the 
representation of members’ interests 
at national and international level and 
the provision of industrial relations 
services. Our strategy highlights 
our purpose to help build a better, 
sustainable future by influencing, 
supporting and delivering for 
business success. The pandemic 
has highlighted Ibec’s critical role in 
this regard. We aim to accelerate 
our development as a professional 
member services organisation 
by growing our membership and 
commercial services and will continue 
to invest in critical areas of our 
strategy. The results for the financial 
year are set out in the profit and loss 
account on page 11.

Overall income of €27.8M in 2020 
is an increase of €636K on 2019. 
The positive movement reflects 
increased membership contributions. 
Expenditure was €26.7m, a decrease 
of €352K on 2019, reflecting a 
general decrease in establishment 
costs as Ibec offices were closed 
since March 2020 and a decrease in 
costs relating to events which were 
postponed or took place virtually. 
The business continues to focus on 
improving processes, procedures 
and profitability.

The principal risk to the company’s 
ongoing performance would 
be the loss of a major level of 
subscription income.

Events Since the end of 
the Financial Year
There were no events between 
the balance sheet date and the 
date these financial statements 
were approved that would 
require adjustment to these 
financial statements.

Going Concern
Having reviewed current performance 
and forecasts, including specific 
consideration of the potential risks 
associated with COVID-19, the 
directors are satisfied that Ibec 
will generate cash flows to meet 
its obligations including the long 
term pension payments. Thus, they 
continue to adopt the going concern 
basis in preparing the annual financial 
statements. The going concern basis 
is further detailed in note 3 to the 
financial statements.

Director’s and Secretary
The names of the persons who were 
directors at any time during the year 
ended 31 December 2020 are set out 
below. Except where indicated, they 
served as directors for the entire year.

Directors

Danny McCoy
Alastair Blair
Gerry Collins
Edel Creely
Paraic Curtis
Frank Gleeson
Cathriona Hallahan
Anne Heraty
Oliver Loomes
Brian MacCraith (Resigned 24 
September 2020)
Eugene McCague
Pat McCann
Francesca McDonagh
Larry Murrin (Resigned 24 
September 2020)
Liam O’Donoghue
Anne O’Leary
Dalton Philips
Tony Smurfit (Resigned 24 
September 2020)
Siobhan Talbot
Kevin Toland (Resigned 26 
March 2021)
Imelda Hurley (appointed 24 
September 2020)
Kari Daniels (appointed 24 
September 2020)

Secretary

Claire McHugh

Directors’ and 
Secretary’s Interests
The directors and secretary had no 
interest in the shares of the company 
or any other group company at
31 December 2020 or 31 December 
2019, as defined in Paragraph 329 of 
the Companies Act, 2014.
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Directors’ Report

Status of the Company
The company is limited by guarantee, 
not having a share capital.

Research and 
Development
The company did not engage in any 
research and development activities 
during the year.

Subsidiary 
Undertakings
Details of subsidiary undertakings 
are set out in note 24 to the 
financial statements.

Political Donations
The company made no political 
contributions during the year (2019: 
nil) and has complied with the 
Electoral Act 1997.

Disclosure of 
Information to Auditors’
Each of the persons who are 
directors at the time when this 
directors’ report is approved have 
each confirmed that:

• so far as the director is 
aware, there is no relevant 
audit information of which the 
company’s statutory auditors are 
unaware; and

• the director has taken all the steps 
that he/she ought to have taken 
as a director in order to be aware 
of any relevant audit information 
and to establish that the 
company’s statutory auditors are 
aware of that information (within 
the meaning of Section 330 of the 
Companies Act 2014).

Auditor’s
The auditors, Deloitte Ireland LLP, 
Chartered Accountants and Statutory 
Audit Firm, continue in office in 
accordance with Section 383(2) of 
the Companies Act 2014.

Approved by the Board and signed 
on its behalf by: 

Danny McCoy
Director 
 

Liam O’Donoghue
Director

Date: 26/5/2021
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Directors’ Responsibilities Statement

The directors are responsible for 
preparing the directors’ report 
and the financial statements in 
accordance with the Companies 
Act 2014.

Irish company law requires the 
directors to prepare financial 
statements for each financial year. 
Under the law, the directors have 
elected to prepare the financial 
statements in accordance with 
FRS 102 The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK 
and Republic of Ireland issued by 
the Financial Reporting Council 
(“relevant financial reporting 
framework”). Under company law, 
the directors must not approve the 
financial statements unless they are 
satisfied that they give a true and 
fair view of the assets, liabilities and 
financial position of the company as 
at the financial year end date and 
of the profit or loss of the company 
for the financial year and otherwise 
comply with the Companies 
Act 2014.

In preparing those financial 
statements, the directors are 
required to:

• select suitable accounting policies 
for the Company Financial 
Statements and then apply 
them consistently;

• make judgements and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent;

• state whether the financial 
statements have been prepared 
in accordance with the applicable 
accounting standards, identify 
those standards, and note the 
effect and the reasons for any 
material departure from those 
standards; and

• prepare the financial statements 
on the going concern basis unless 
it is inappropriate to presume 
that the company will continue 
in business.

The directors are responsible for 
ensuring that the company keeps 
or causes to be kept adequate 
accounting records which correctly 
explain and record the transactions 
of the company, enable at any 
time the assets, liabilities, financial 
position and profit or loss of the 
company to be determined with 
reasonable accuracy, enable 
them to ensure that the financial 
statements and directors’ report 
comply with the Companies Act 
2014 and enable the financial 
statements to be audited. They are 
also responsible for safeguarding the 
assets of the company and hence 
for taking reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and 
other irregularities.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Members Of Ibec Company Limited By Guarantee

Report on the audit of 
the financial statements
Opinion on the financial 
statements of Ibec Company 
Limited by Guarantee (the 
‘company’)

In our opinion the 
financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the 
assets, liabilities and financial 
position of the company as at 31 
December 2020 and of the profit 
for the financial year then ended; 
and

• have been properly prepared 
in accordance with the relevant 
financial reporting framework and, 
in particular, with the requirements 
of the Companies Act 2014.

The financial statements we have 
audited comprise:

• the Profit and Loss Account;
• the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income;
• the Balance Sheet;
• the Statement of Changes 

in Equity;
• the Cash Flow Statement; and
• the related notes 1 to 27, 

including a summary of significant 
accounting policies as set out in 
note 3.

The relevant financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in 
their preparation is the Companies 
Act 2014 and FRS 102 “The Financial 
Reporting Standard applicable in 
the UK and Republic of Ireland” 
issued by the Financial Reporting 
Council (“the relevant financial 
reporting framework”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in 
accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs 
(Ireland)) and applicable law. Our 
responsibilities under those standards 
are described below in the “Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the 
financial	statements” section of 
our report.

We are independent of the company 
in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in 
Ireland, including the Ethical Standard 
issued by the Irish Auditing and 
Accounting Supervisory Authority, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going 
concern

In auditing the financial statements, 
we have concluded that the directors’ 
use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in the preparation of the 
financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have 
performed, we have not identified 
any material uncertainties relating to 
events or conditions that, individually 
or collectively , may cast significant 
doubt on the company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a 
period of at least twelve months from 
when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the 
responsibilities of the directors 
with respect to going concern are 
described in the relevant sections of 
this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the 
information included in the Annual 
Report and Financial Statements 
for the financial year ended 31 
December 2020, other than the 
financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. The directors are 
responsible for the other information 
contained within the Annual Report 
and Financial Statements for the 
financial year ended 31 December 
2020. Our opinion on the financial 
statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent 
otherwise explicitly stated in our 
report, we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent 
with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the 
audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If we identify 
such material inconsistencies or 
apparent material misstatements, we 
are required to determine whether 
there is a material misstatement 
in the financial statements or a 
material misstatement of the other 
information. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude 
that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in 
this regard.
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Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the 
Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, 
the directors are responsible for 
the preparation of the financial 
statements and for being satisfied 
that they give a true and fair 
view and otherwise comply with 
the Companies Act 2014, and 
for such internal control as the 
directors determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, 
the directors are responsible for 
assessing the company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the company or to 
cease operations, or have no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but 
is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with 
ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance 
with ISAs (Ireland), we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of 
material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of 
internal control relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the 
company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures 
made by the directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness 
of the directors’ use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may 
cast significant doubt on the 
company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial 
statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of the 
auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause 
the entity (or where relevant, the 
group) to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, 
structure and content of the 
financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

We communicate with those 
charged with governance regarding, 
among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including 
any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that the auditor identifies 
during the audit.

Report on other legal and 
regulatory requirements

Opinion on other matters prescribed 
by the Companies Act 2014
Based solely on the work undertaken 
in the course of the audit, we 
report that:

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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• We have obtained all the 
information and explanations 
which we consider necessary for 
the purposes of our audit.

• In our opinion the accounting 
records of the company were 
sufficient to permit the financial 
statements to be readily and 
properly audited.

• The financial statements 
are in agreement with the 
accounting records.

• In our opinion the information 
given in the directors’ report 
is consistent with the financial 
statements and the directors’ 
report has been prepared in 
accordance with the Companies 
Act 2014.

Matters on which we are required 
to report by exception
Based on the knowledge and 
understanding of the company and 
its environment obtained in the 
course of the audit, we have not 
identified material misstatements in 
the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect 
of the provisions in the Companies 
Act 2014 which require us to 
report to you if, in our opinion, the 
disclosures of directors’ remuneration 
and transactions specified by law are 
not made.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the 
company’s members, as a body, 
in accordance with Section 391 
of the Companies Act 2014. Our 
audit work has been undertaken 
so that we might state to the 
company’s members those matters 
we are required to state to them 
in an auditor’s report and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept 
or assume responsibility to anyone 
other than the company and the 
company’s members as a body, for 
our audit work, for this report, or for 
the opinions we have formed.

Michael Hartwell

For and on behalf of 
Deloitte Ireland LLP
Chartered Accountants 
and Statutory Audit Firm
Deloitte & Touche House, 
Earlsfort Terrace, Dublin 2 

Date: 31 May 2021
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Profit and Loss Account
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
Ibec 
core

Sector 
specific

Total Ibec 
core

Sector 
specific

Total

Notes € € € € € €

Turnover

Subscriptions 20,320,891 1,782,206 22,103,097 18,515,140 1,763,033 20,278,173

Training income 1,826,070 (159) 1,825,911 2,809,838 12,100 2,821,938

Other income 1,694,779 2,140,867 3,835,646 2,330,950 1,697,943 4,028,893

23,841,740 3,922,914 27,764,654 23,655,928 3,473,076 27,129,004

Operating costs

Administration costs (20,577,834) (3,569,713) (24,147,547) (20,622,003) (3,538,312) (24,160,315)

Establishment charges (2,009,827) - (2,009,827) (2,077,222) - (2,077,222)

Travel and motor expenses (80,415) (11,806) (92,221) (309,717) (111,795) (421,512)

Depreciation and 
amortisation (401,631) - (401,631) (343,952) - (343,952)

(23,069,707) (3,581,519) (26,651,226) (23,352,894) (3,650,107) (27,003,001)

Profit/(loss) on ordinary 
activities before 
interest and taxation 772,033 341,395 1,113,428 303,034 (177,031) 126,003

Interest (payable)/receivable 
and similar income 7 (14,615) - (14,615) 6,029 - 6,029

Profit on ordinary 
activities before taxation 757,418 341,395 1,098,813 309,063 (177,031) 132,032

Tax charge on profit on 
ordinary activities 8 (114,274) - (114,274) (74,776) - (74,776)

Profit/(loss) for the 
financial year 643,144 341,395 984,539 234,287 (177,031) 57,256
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
lbec 
core

Sector 
specific

Total lbec 
core

Sector 
specific

Total

€ € € € € €

Profit/(loss) for the financial year 643,144 341,395 984,539 234,287 (177,031) 57,256

Other comprehensive income/(loss): - - - - - -

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for 
the financial year, net of tax - - -

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for 
the financial year 643,144 341,395 984,539 234,287 (177,031) 57,256
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2020

2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
lbec 
core

Sector 
specific

Total lbec 
core

Sector 
specific

Total

Notes € € € € € €
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12 682,163 - 682,163 561,431 - 561,431
Intangible assets 10 467,007 - 467,007 385,184 - 385,184
Financial assets 11 91 - 91 91 - 91

1,149,261 - 1,149,261 946,706 - 946,706

Current assets
Debtors 13 18,606,129 340,609 18,946,738 15,050,413 870,415 15,920,828
Inter fund balance (2,636,099) 2,636,099 - (1,614,372) 1,614,372 -
Cash on hand and at bank 14 2,590,187 - 2,590,187 2,604,179 - 2,604,179

18,560,217 2,976,708 21,536,925 16,040,220 2,484,787 18,525,007

Creditors: Amounts 
falling due within one year 15 (18,009,156) (628,374) (18,637,530) (15,357,743) (477,848) (15,835,591)

Net current assets 551,061 2,348,334 2,899,395 682,477 2,006,939 2,689,416
Total assets less 
current liabilities 1,700,322 2,348,334 4,048,656 1,629,183 2,006,939 3,636,122

Provisions for 
liabilities and charges 16 (1,183,441) - (1,183,441) (1,755,446) - (1,755,446)
Net assets 516,881 2,348,334 2,865,215 (126,263) 2,006,939 1,880,676

Capital and reserves
Capital reserves 18 19,233 - 19,233 19,233 - 19,233
Revaluation reserve 18 96,639 - 96,639 96,639 - 96,639
Profit and loss account 18 401,009 - 401,009 (242,135) - (242,135)
Sector specific reserves 18 - 2,348,334 2,348,334 - 2,006,939 2,006,939
Total equity 516,881 2,348,334 2,865,215 (126,263) 2,006,939 1,880,676

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 26/5/2021 and signed on its behalf by: 

 

Danny McCoy Liam O’Donoghue
Director Director
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

Capital 
reserve

Revaluation 
reserve

Profit and 
loss 

account

Sector 
specific 
reserve

Total

€ € € € €

Balance at 1 January 2019 19,233 96,639 (476,422) 2,183,970 1,823,420

Profit/(loss) for the financial year - - 234,287 (177,031) 57,256

Other comprehensive income  
for the financial year - - - - -

Total comprehensive income /(loss)  
for the financial year - - 234,287 (177,031) 57,256

Balance at 31 December 19,233 96,639 (242,135) 2,006,939 1,880,676

Balance at 1 January 2020 19,233 96,639 (242,135) 2,006,939 1,880,676

Profit for the financial year - - 643,144 341,394 984,539

Other comprehensive income 
for the financial year - - - - -

Total comprehensive income  
for the financial year - - 643,144 341,394 984,539

Balance at 31 December 2020 19,233 96,639 401,009 2,348,334 2,865,215
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Statement of Cash Flows
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

Notes 2020 2019
€ €

Cash from operations 20 711,563 233,538

Income taxes (paid)/refunded (106,754) 28,864

Net cash generated from operating activities 604,809 262,402

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of tangible fixed assets (290,804) (216,938)

Purchase of intangible fixed assets (313,382) (315,935)

Net cash used in investing activities (604,186) (532,873)

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest (paid)/received (14,615) 6,029

Net cash generated from financing activities (14,615) 6,029

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (13,992) (264,442)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2,604,179 2,868,621

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2,590,187 2,604,179

Cash and cash equivalents consists of:

Cash at bank and in hand 19,158 19,158

Funds held on behalf of projects 2,571,029 2,585,021

Cash and cash equivalents 2,590,187 2,604,179
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

1 General Information
lbec Company Limited by Guarantee (‘the company’), incorporated and registered in the Republic of Ireland is 
involved in the representation of members’ interests at national and international level and the provision of industrial 
relations services.

lbec Company Limited by Guarantee is incorporated as a company limited by guarantee in the Republic of Ireland. 
The address of its registered office is Confederation House, 84-86 Lower Baggot Street, Dublin 2.

These financial statements are the company’s separate financial statements.

The financial statements are presented in Euro.

2 Statement of Compliance
The entity financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and in accordance with Irish GAAP 
(accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK and promulgated by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants in Ireland and the Companies Act 2014). The entity financial statements comply with 
Financial Reporting Standard 102, The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland 
(FRS 102) and the Companies Act 2014.

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These 
policies have been consistently applied to all financial years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the measurement 
of jewellery and paintings at their deemed cost on transition to FRS 102.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain key assumptions 
concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date. It also requires the 
directors to exercise their judgement in the process of applying the company’s accounting policies. The areas 
involving a higher degree of judgement or areas where assumptions and estimates have a significant risk of causing 
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are disclosed in 
note 4.

Going concern

The balance sheet at 31 December 2020 shows an overall net assets position of €2.87M (2019: €1.88M) and net 
current assets of €2.90M (2019: €2.69M).

Having reviewed current performance and forecasts, including specific consideration of the potential risks 
associated with COVID-19, the directors are satisfied that Ibec will generate cash flows to meet its obligations 
including the long term pension payments. Therefore these financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis as the directors are satisfied that Ibec has sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations as 
they fall due in the 12 month period from the date of approval of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are carried at cost (or deemed cost) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses. Cost includes the original purchase price, costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for its intended use, applicable dismantling, removal and restoration costs and 
borrowing costs capitalised.

(i)	 Equipment,	fixtures,	fittings	and	furniture
Equipment, fixtures, fittings and furniture are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses.

(ii) Paintings and jewellery
Paintings and jewellery are carried at deemed cost measured at valuation at the date of transition to FRS 102.

(iii) Depreciation and residual values
Depreciation is calculated so as to write off the cost of the tangible fixed assets over their estimated useful 
lives, as follows:

Computer equipment  straight line basis - 4 years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment  reducing balance basis - 12.5%
Paintings and jewellery straight line basis - 20 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each 
financial year. The effect of any change in either residual values or useful lives is accounted for prospectively.

(iv) Subsequent additions and major components
Subsequent costs, including major inspections, are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as 
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that economic benefits associated with the item will 
flow to the company and the cost can be measured reliably.

The carrying amount of any replaced component is derecognised. Major components are treated as 
separate assets where they have significantly different patterns of consumption of economic benefits and are 
depreciated separately over their useful lives.

Repairs, maintenance and minor inspection costs are expensed as incurred.

(v) Derecognition
Tangible fixed assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected. On 
disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible fixed assets

Computer software is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Software 
is amortised over its estimated useful life, of five years, on a straight-line basis. Software is not considered to have 
a residual value.

Where factors, such as technological advancement or changes in market prices, indicate that the software’s useful 
life has changed, the useful life is amended prospectively to reflect the new circumstances.

Intangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment if there is an indication that the intangible fixed asset may 
be impaired.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at historical cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Leased assets

Operating leases do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessor. Payments under 
operating leases are recognised in the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within current 
liabilities. Cash and cash equivalents are initially measured at transaction price and subsequently measured at 
amortised cost.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is the amount of revenue derived from the provision of goods and services falling within the company’s 
ordinary activities after deduction of trade discounts and value-added-tax. Membership income is recognised in the 
year to which the relevant membership relates. Training income is recognised when the relevant training course has 
taken place. Sponsorship income is recognised when the event to which the sponsorship relates occurs. Advisory 
income is recognised when the related service is provided. Project income is recognised when earned, normally 
when the related project is completed.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amount 
receivable for services rendered, net discounts and rebates allowed by the company.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method. Interest income is presented as interest 
receivable and similar income’ in the profit and loss account.

Income tax

Income tax expense for the financial year comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the financial year. 
Income tax expense is presented in the same component of total comprehensive income or equity as the 
transaction or other event that resulted in the income tax expense.

Current or deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

(i) Current tax
Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the financial year or past 
financial years. Current tax is measured at the amount of current tax that is expected to be paid using tax rates 
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the financial year.

The directors periodically evaluate positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable 
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. A current tax liability is recognised where appropriate and measured 
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of timing differences, which are differences between taxable profits and 
total comprehensive income as stated in the financial statements. These timing differences arise from the 
inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in financial years different from those in which they are 
recognised in financial statements.

Deferred tax is recognised on all timing differences at the end of each financial year with certain exceptions. 
Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only when it is probable that they will be 
recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Deferred tax is measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end 
of each financial year end and that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference.

Provisions and contingencies

(i) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount.

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of 
past events, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the 
amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the best estimate of the amount required to settle the 
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted to reflect 
the current best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation. The unwinding of the discount is 
recognised as a finance cost in profit or loss, presented as part of interest payable and similar charges in the 
financial year in which it arises.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is 
determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole.

In particular:

(i) Restructuring provisions are recognised when the company has a legal or constructive obligation at the 
end of the financial year to carry out the restructuring. The company has a constructive obligation to 
carry out a restructuring when there is a detailed, formal plan for the restructuring and the company has 
raised a valid expectation in those affected by either starting to implement the plan or announcing its main 
features to those affected; and

(ii) Provision is not made for future operating losses.

(ii) Contingencies
Contingent liabilities, arising as a result of past events, are not recognised as a liability because it is not 
probable that the company will be required to transfer economic benefits in settlement of the obligation or 
the amount cannot be reliably measured at the end of the financial year. Possible but uncertain obligations 
are not recognised as liabilities but are contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the financial 
statements unless the probability of an outflow of resources is remote.

Contingent assets are not recognised. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial instruments

The company has chosen to apply the provisions of Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 to account for all of its 
financial instruments.

(i) Financial assets
Basic financial assets, including trade and other debtors, cash and cash equivalents, short-term deposits and 
investments, are initially recognised at transaction price (including transaction costs), unless the arrangement 
constitutes a financing transaction.

Trade and other debtors and cash and cash equivalents are subsequently measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method.

At the end of each financial year financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for objective 
evidence of impairment. If there is objective evidence that a financial asset measured at amortised cost is 
impaired an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. The impairment loss is the difference between 
the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the financial asset’s estimated cash inflows 
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.

If, in a subsequent financial year, the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be 
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised the previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not exceed what the 
carrying amount would have been had the impairment loss not previously been recognised. The impairment 
reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Financial liabilities
Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other creditors and loans from fellow group companies are 
initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. Where the 
arrangement constitutes a financing transaction the resulting financial liability is initially measured at the present 
value of the future payments discounted at a market rate of interest for a similar debt instrument.

Trade and other creditors, loans from fellow group companies and financial liabilities from arrangements 
which constitute financing transactions are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest method.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of 
business from suppliers. Trade creditors are classified as due within one year if payment is due within one year 
or less. If not, they are presented as falling due after more than one year. Trade creditors are recognised initially 
at transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is 
discharged, cancelled or expires.

(iii)	 Off-setting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when there 
is an enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2020

4 Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimation Uncertainty
Estimates and judgements made in the process of preparing the entity financial statements are continually 
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

(a) Critical judgement in applying the entity’s accounting policies

The following judgement, apart from those involving estimates, made by the directors has had significant effect 
on the amounts recognised in the entity financial statements:

(i) Collectability of project costs
The directors make the judgement that all costs incurred on behalf of projects are fully recoverable. 
The judgement is based on active management involvement in these projects and full visibility of their 
financial activity.

(b) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The directors make estimates and assumptions concerning the future in the process of preparing the entity 
financial statements. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual 
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(i) lmpairment of debtors
The directors make an assessment at the end of each financial year of whether there is objective evidence 
that a trade or other debtor is impaired. When assessing impairment of trade and other debtors, the directors 
consider factors including the current credit rating of the debtor, the age profile of outstanding invoices, recent 
correspondence and trading activity, and historical experience of cash collections from the debtor. See note 13 
for the net carrying amount of the debtors and the impairment provision at year end.

5 Turnover
2020 2019

€ €

Analysis of turnover by geographical market:

Ireland 27,764,654 27,129,004

Analysis of turnover by category:

Subscription income 22,103,097 20,278,173

Training income 1,825,911 2,821,938

Other income 3,835,646 4,028,893

27,764,654 27,129,004
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6 Operating Costs
2020 2019

€ €

The profit on ordinary activities before taxation is arrived at after (crediting)/charging:

Amortisation 231,559 174,444

Depreciation 170,072 169,507

Impairment (gain)/loss - trade debtors (18,995) 66,145

Operating lease rentals 1,422,273 1,311,843

Auditor’s remuneration

Remuneration (including expenses) for the statutory audit and other services carried out for the company by the 
company’s auditor is as follows:

2020 2019
€ €

Audit of the entity financial statements 23,000 23,000

Tax advisory services - -

Other non-audit services - -

23,000 23,000

7 Interest (Payable)/Receivable and Similar Income
2020 2019

€ €

Interest on short term deposits (14,615) 6,029

Interest (payable)/receivable and similar income (14,615) 6,029
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8 Taxation
(a) Tax expense included in profit or loss

2020 2019
€ €

Current tax:

Irish corporation tax at 12.5% on profit for the financial year 160,094 64,674

Adjustments in respect of prior financial years - (15,819)

Current tax charge for the financial year 160,094 48,855

Deferred tax:

Origination and reversal of timing differences (45,820) 25,921

Adjustments in respect of prior financial years - -

Deferred tax expense for the financial year (45,820) 25,921

Tax charge on ordinary activities 114,274 74,776

(b) Reconciliation of tax expense

Tax assessed for the financial year is lower than the current tax charge that would result from applying the standard 
rate of Irish corporation tax to the surplus. The differences are explained below:

2020 2019
€ €

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 1,098,813 132,032

Profit multiplied by the standard rate of tax in the Republic of Ireland  
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 of 12.5% (2019: 12.5%). 137,352 16,504

Effects	of:

Disallowable expenses 18,790 47,600

Income taxed at higher rate 3,952 570

Losses carried back - -

Other (45,820) 25,921

Adjustments in respect of prior years - (15,819)

Current tax charge on ordinary activities 114,274 74,776
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9 Employees and Directors
The company’s personnel cost and pension costs for all employees recharged by Irish Business and Employers’ 
Confederation (“lbec”) or the “Confederation” is:

2020 2019
€ €

Charge from lbec in relation to wages and salaries 12,239,004 11,537,462

Charge from lbec in relation to social insurance costs 1,336,310 1,241,861

Charge from lbec in relation to defined contribution pension costs 1,277,545 1,294,625

Charge from lbec in relation to contributions for the  
defined benefit pension scheme shortfall 2,171,976 1,561,601

17,024,835 15,635,549

Directors

Emoluments 783,635 751,766

Contributions to retirement benefit schemes: 
- Defined contribution scheme 77,531 79,521

Retirement benefits are accruing to 2 directors (2019: 2 directors) under a defined contribution scheme.

Key management compensation

Key management includes the directors and members of senior management. The compensation paid or payable 
to key management for employee services is shown below:

2020 2019
€ €

Salaries and other short-term benefits 1,501,182 1,383,620

Post-employment benefits 216,141 152,264

Total key management compensation 1,717,323 1,535,884

Ibec has a remuneration committee which has full oversight over senior management compensation.
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10 Intangible Fixed Assets
Software

€

Cost/valuation

At 1 January 2019 1,293,611

Additions 315,935

At 31 December 2019 1,609,546

At 1 January 2020 1,609,546

Additions 313,382

At 31 December 2020 1,922,928

Amortisation

At 1 January 2019 1,049,918

Charge for the year 174,444

At 31 December 2019 1,224,362

At 1 January 2020 1,224,362

Charge for the year 231,559

At 31 December 2020 1,455,921

Net book value

At 31 December 2020 467,007

At 31 December 2019 385,184

Software includes the company’s customer relationship management system. This software is amortised over its 
estimated useful life, of 5 years, on a straight-line basis (2019: 5 years). There are no other individually material 
intangible fixed assets.

The useful life of this software is based on its expected utilisation by the company and is consistent with historical 
experience of use patterns for similar software.
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11 Financial Assets
Investment 

in subsidiary 
undertakings

€

Cost and carrying amount at 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 91

Financial fixed assets comprise equity shares in subsidiaries listed in note 24, none of which are publicly traded.

The cumulative provision for diminution in value of financial fixed assets amounts to €nil (2019: €nil).

12 Tangible Assets
Paintings 

and 
jewellery

Equipment, 
furniture and 

fittings

Computer 
equipment

Total

€ € € €

Cost/valuation

At 1 January 2019 169,241 1,486,918 713,803 2,369,962

Additions 14,293 93,743 108,902 216,938

At 31 December 2019 183,534 1,580,661 822,705 2,586,900

At 1 January 2020 183,534 1,580,661 822,705 2,586,900

Additions 4,076 17,128 269,600 290,804

At 31 December 2020 187,610 1,597,789 1,092,305 2,877,704

Depreciation

At 1 January 2019 32,886 1,220,341 602,735 1,855,962

Charge for year 9,730 47,721 112,056 169,507

At 31 December 2019 42,616 1,268,062 714,791 2,025,469

At 1 January 2020 42,616 1,268,062 714,791 2,025,469

Charge for year 9,934 43,897 116,241 170,072

At 31 December 2020 52,550 1,311,959 831,032 2,195,541

Net book values

At 31 December 2020 135,060 285,830 261,273 682,163

At 31 December 2019 140,918 312,599 107,914 561,431
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13 Debtors
2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
lbec 
core

Sector 
specific

Total lbec 
core

Sector 
specific

Total

€ € € € € €

Amount due from subsidiaries and lbec 15,827,594 - 15,827,594 12,164,711 - 12,164,711

Trade debtors 2,333,651 - 2,333,651 2,718,910 - 2,718,910

Debtors attributable to designated fund - 289,507 289,507 - 866,182 866,182

Prepayments 298,767 51,102 349,869 99,011 4,233 103,244

Amounts due on special projects - - - 1,299 - 1,299

Other debtors 533 - 533 533 - 533

Deferred tax asset (note 17) 56,556 - 56,556 10,736 - 10,736

Corporation tax debtor - - - - - -

Withholding tax recoverable 89,028 - 89,028 55,213 - 55,213

18,606,129 340,609 18,946,738 15,050,413 870,415 15,920,828

14 Cash and Cash Equivalents
2020 2019

€ €

Cash at bank and in hand 19,158 19,158

Funds held on behalf of special projects (see (a) below) 2,571,029 2,585,021

2,590,187 2,604,179

(a) Funds held on behalf of special projects represent amounts held in bank accounts owned by the Company, for 
which the use is restricted to activities related to the operation of such projects on behalf of external agencies.
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15 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019

lbec core Sector 
specific

Total lbec core Sector 
specific

Total

€ € € € € €

Trade creditors 10,436 23,571 34,007 - - -

Accruals 4,035,794 455,265 4,491,059 3,432,267 477,848 3,910,115

Deferred revenue from events 554,551 139,200 693,751 710,974 - 710,974

Subscriptions received in advance 7,265,740 10,338 7,276,078 5,314,937 - 5,314,937

Funds due to special projects (see note (a)) 2,571,029 - 2,571,029 2,585,021 - 2,585,021

Amounts due on special projects 92,155 - 92,155 - - -

Other creditors including tax  
and social insurance 3,479,451 - 3,479,451 3,314,544 - 3,314,544

18,009,156 628,374 18,637,530 15,357,743 477,848 15,835,591

Other creditors including tax  
and social insurance comprise:

Income tax deducted under PAYE 435,404 - 435,404 402,786 - 402,786

Corporation tax 90,627 - 90,627 37,288 - 37,288

Value added tax 2,953,420 - 2,953,420 2,874,470 - 2,874,470

3,479,451 - 3,479,451 3,314,544 - 3,314,544

(a) Funds due to special projects represent amounts held in bank accounts owned by the Company. The use of 
these amounts is restricted to activities related to the operation of such projects on behalf of external agencies. As 
a result, the amount is held at the balance sheet date is due to external agencies if not utilised on special projects.
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16 Provisions for Liabilities
Dilapidation Restructuring Ex-gratia  

pensions
Total

€ € € €

At 1 January 2019 361,000 933,611 35,133 1,329,744

Charged to the profit and loss account 133,000 492,908 - 625,908

Utilised during the financial year - (200,206) - (200,206)

At 31 December 2019 494,000 1,226,313 35,133 1,755,446

At 1 January 2020 494,000 1,226,313 35,133 1,755,446

Charged to the profit and loss account 123,499 - - 123,499

Utilised during the financial year - (695,504) - (695,504)

At 31 December 2020 617,499 530,809 35,133 1,183,441

The restructuring provision includes amounts in relation to costs expected in relation to cessation of 
training programmes.

Ex-gratia pensions provision relates to pensions paid to spouses of certain former employees.

17 Deferred Taxation
2020 2019

€ €

Accelerated capital allowances

At beginning of year 10,736 36,657

Debited/(Credited) to the profit and loss account 87,314 (25,921)

At end of year 98,050 10,736
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18 Reserves
A description of each reserve within equity is outlined below:

Revaluation reserve

This reserve arose on application of the revaluation model for certain classes of tangible fixed assets prior to the 
transition to FRS 102 and is attributable to the revaluation surplus on those assets at 1 January 2014.

Profit and loss account and sector specific reserves

These reserves represent accumulated income for the financial year and prior financial years.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve arose on the sale of a leasehold interest.

19 Pensions
(a) Defined benefit pension scheme

lbec’s defined benefit pension scheme was wound up on 31 October 2014 and under the terms of the wind up 
lbec took on a deficit funding liability in respect of payments into a defined contribution scheme, repayable over a 
10 year period.

(b) Ex-gratia pensions

The company pays ex-gratia pensions to spouses of certain former employees. The actuarial value of these ex-
gratia payments, as determined by the actuary, is €35,133 (2019: €35,133). The company has recognised this as a 
liability in the financial statements.

(c) Defined contribution pension scheme

The organisations also operate a defined contribution pension scheme. The plan is operated on a group basis for 
employees of both lbec Company Limited by Guarantee and the Irish Business and Employers’ Confederation.
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20 Net Cash Inflow from Operating Activities
2020 2019

€ €

Profit for the financial year 984,539 57,256

Tax credit on ordinary activities 114,274 74,776

Net interest expense/(income) 14,615 (6,029)

Operating profit 1,113,428 126,003

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets 170,072 169,507

Amortisation of intangible assets 231,559 174,444

lncrease in debtors (2,980,091) (1,647,465)

Increase in creditors 2,748,600 1,011,268

lncrease in provision for liabilities (572,005) 399,781

Net cash inflow from operating activities 711,563 233,538

21 Analysis of Changes in Net Debt
2019 Cash flow 2020

€ € €

Cash at bank and in hand 19,158 - 19,158

Funds held on behalf of special projects 2,585,021 (13,992) 2,571,029

22 Capital and Other Commitments
At 31 December 2020 the company had future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases 
for each of the following periods:

2020 2019
€ €

Not later than one year 1,294,932 1,286,614

Between two and five years 4,976,038 4,969,435

Later than five years 4,125,606 5,286,646

10,396,576 11,542,695
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23 Financial Instruments
The company had the following financial instruments:

Note 2020 2019
€ €

Financial assets that are debt instruments at amortised cost

Trade debtors 13 2,333,651 2,718,910

Cash at bank and in hand 19,158 19,158

Financial liabilities measured at undiscounted amount payable:

Trade creditors and accruals 15 4,258,502 3,461,291

Funds due to projects 2,571,029 2,585,021

24 Subsidiary Undertakings
At 31 December 2020 the company had the following subsidiary undertakings:

Food and Drink Industry Ireland Limited*
Financial Services Industries Association Limited *
Small Firms Association Limited*
Irish Software Association Limited*

The above are all 100% owned subsidiary undertakings incorporated in Republic of Ireland whose registered office 
is 84-86 Lower Baggot Street, Dublin 2. Undertakings designated with an asterisk (*) are dormant.

25 Ultimate Controlling Party and Related Party Transactions
The members of the company are the members of the National Council of the Confederation (other than trustees of 
the Confederation), which is regarded as the ultimate controlling party.

The company has amounts owing from and due to affiliated organisations as detailed in notes 13 and 15. The 
company has earned an administration fee of €766,569 (2019: €762,880) for services provided.

As set out in the statement of change in equity €2,348,334 is maintained to a designated fund for use by affiliated 
membership organisations.

26 Events Since the End of the Financial Year
There were no events between the balance sheet date and the date these financial statements were approved that 
would require adjustment to these financial statements.

27 Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved by the directors on 26/5/2021. 

 

Danny McCoy Liam O’Donoghue
Director Director
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